FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of CONCOR)
Chairman’s Address

Dear Shareholders,

I have great pleasure in welcoming you to this 19™ Annual General Meeting of
your Company. The Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the period
ended 31%t March, 2024, Directors’ Report incorporating remarks/comments of
Auditor along-with replies thereto and Auditors’” Report, have already been

circulated to you and with your permission, I take them as read.

Due to changed business dynamics with implementation of Goods and Service
Tax (GST), customized storage requirements, intense competition with un-
organized sector, it was decided in the year 2018 to Re-engineer the Rai facility
in two phases for development as an Agri-logistics Centre with changed business
model of leasing/renting out the warehousing space for Cold Storage, CA
(Controlled Atmosphere) storage and Custom Bonded Warehousing (CBW) to

interested parties.

Under Phase-1 of Re-engineering plan, the existing CA facility was modified with
infusion of Rs. 15.10 Cr. by CONCOR to make it more versatile and suitable for
storage of variety of products apart from Apple. Further, two new warehouses
were constructed under Phase-2 with investment by CONCOR of Rs. 12.02 Ctr.

and same have been leased out for a period of 10 years.

During the financial year 2023-24, the operating turnover of your Company
increased from Rs. 5.68 Cr. in F/Y 2022-23 to Rs. 7.83 Cr. in FY 2023-24, mainly
on account of capturing additional customs cleared imported fruits where the
cargo turnaround is faster resulting in higher handling revenue in CA store and
revenue realization from leasing of Phase-2 warehouses. With such increase,
FHEL earned its maiden net profit of Rs. 0.63 Cr. during FY 2023-24 in
leasing/warehousing business model as against net loss of Rs. 2.57 Cr. during
previous year 2022-23.
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In respect of Corporate Governance, I would like to mention that your Company

is following the guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises.

In conclusion, I would like to extend my sincere thanks and deep gratitude to the
esteemed Shareholders, Board of Directors and Auditors for their valuable

support, advice and guidance.

Thanking you,

Sd/-
Place :New Delhi (Sanjay Swarup)
Date :24.09.2024 Chairman

Note: This does not purport to be a record of the proceedings of the 19th
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LTD.

VISION & MISSION

To provide sufficient handling & storage facilities for perishables in India, with a view to
reduce/control wastages of perishable food products in India.

Corporate Objectives

* Eliminating wastage of perishable food products by making available state of the art
Cold supply Chain Infrastructure at reasonable cost in the country, thereby saving
precious food products & foreign exchange for the country.

* To be a customer focused, performance driven, result oriented organization, focused
on providing value for money to its customers.

* To maximize productive utilization of resources, deliver high quality services and to
be recognized for setting the standards for excellence.

* To look constantly for new and betier ways to provide innovative services. It will aim
for customer convenience and satisfaction, learn from its competitors and constantly
strive for excellence.

* To set measurable performance goals to support the objectives and mission of the
organization and work as a professional, competent and dedicated team for the
organization to achieve excellence in all areas of business and operations.

* To follow highest standards of business ethics and add social value for the community
at large by discharging social obligations as a responsible corporate entity.

* To maintain absolute integrity, honesty, transparency and fair-play in all its official
dealings and strive to maintain high standards of ethics.
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 19" Annual General Meeting
of the Shareholders of the Company will be held as under-:

Date . 24.09.2024

Day :  Tuesday

Time : 04:00 PM

Venue . Conference Hall,
CONCOR Bhawan,

C-3, Mathura Road,
New Delhi- 110076

to transact, with or without modifications, as may be
permissible, the following business-:

ORDINARY BUSINESS -:

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions -:

To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements for
the year ended on 31.03.2024 and the report of Board of
Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

To appoint a Chairman (ex-officio Part-time) on the Board
of Company in place of Shri Sanjay Swarup (DIN:
05159435) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for reappointment.



To take note of the appointment of M/s. M.L. Kejriwal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi as Statutory Auditors of the
Company and fix their remuneration and to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution-:

"RESOLVED THAT the appointment of M/s. M.L. Kejriwal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for
the financial year 2023-24, in terms of order no. CA.
V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT,F&HEL(1)/1187  dated
21.09.2023 of C&AG of India, be and is hereby noted. Further, they
may be paid such remuneration as may be fixed by Board of
Directors of the Company from time to time.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution -:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Sharad Verma (DIN: 07054970), be and
is hereby appointed as Part-time Non-executive Director of the
Company w. e. f. 19.10.2023 and shall be liable to retire by
rotation.”

By order of Board of
Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

Sd/-
(Suman Lata)
Company Secretary
Date 02.09.2024
Place: New Delhi



NOTES :

(a)

(b)

Details of directors seeking re-appointment/appointment at
the meeting, is annexed hereto and forms part of Notice.

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of
Companies Act, 2013 relating to Special Business to be
transacted at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

(c) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled

(d)

to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself
/herself and proxy need not be a member.

The instrument appointing proxy should however be
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the
meeting.

(e) Pursuant to Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013, Auditors of

Q)

a Government Company are to be appointed/re-appointed by
the Comptroller and Auditor General (C & AG) of India, and
in terms of provisions contained in Companies Act, 2013,
their remuneration shall be fixed by Company in General
Meeting or in such manner as the Company in General
Meeting may determine. In pursuance of the same, C&AG
of India has appointed M/s. M.L. Kejriwal & Co., Chartered
Accountants, as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the
F/Y 2023-24. Accordingly, Members are requested to
authorize Board of Directors of the Company to fix the
remuneration for the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice
are open for inspection at the Registered office of the
Company during office hours on all working days upto and
inclusive of the date of Annual General Meeting.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4

1. CONCOR (holding company) vide its office letter no.
CON/F&CS/FHEL/2023 dated 20.10.2023 communicated about
nomination of Shri Sharad Verma, Executive Director (Area-I)/
CONCOR as Director on the Board of FHEL.

Sh. Sharad Verma, is I.R.T.S. (Indian Railway Traffic Service) of 1993
batch. He has done M. Phil in Sociology from JNU. His career
stretching over almost 3 decades has had a range of assignments in
Public and Government Sector. He started his career in 1994 in
Indian Railways and has worked in various capacities in the
Commercial Operations. In 2011, he joined Container Corporation of
India Ltd., and has since then held various assignments such as
Regional Head of Eastern Region and as Executive Director in
Operations, MIS, HR etc. He is currently working as Executive
Director heading Area-I in CONCOR. He has been trained in Antwerp
Port, Belgium. He is a Life Member of Chartered Institute of Logistics
and Transport (CILT).

2. He has given his consent to act as Part-time Non-executive
Director/FHEL and other declarations/disclosures as required under
Companies Act, 2013. He was appointed as Director/FHEL w. e. f.
19.10.2023 and shall be liable to retire by rotation.

3. In accordance with the provisions of section 152(2) of Companies
Act, 2013, the above appointment is required to be approved in
General Meeting.

None of the Directors except Shri Sharad Verma, Key managerial
personnel or their relative is concerned or interested in the resolution.

Board recommends passing of the Resolution.



DETAILS OF DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Name Date of Birth | Date of | Qualification | Expertise in specific | List of | Details of
appointment | s functional areas Other Other
Compa | Committee
nies in | Membershi
which P
Directo
rship
Held
Shri Sanjay Swarup | 01.08.1966 01.10.2023 as | B. E. (Hons.) | Rich experience in Railway | Four* One**
Chairman Electronics & | Operations, Commerecial,
Communicati | Safety and Information
27.09.2016 as | on from IIT | Technology functions. Also
Director Roorkee and P | have expertise in design of Dry
G Diploma | Ports and Multi Modal
(MBA) in | Logistics Parks (MMLPs) and
Public Policy | Strategic Planning.
&
Management
from 1M
Bangalore.
Shri Sharad Verma | 04.08.1966 19.10.2023 M.Phil Ex-Railway Officer having | Four$ Nil
(Sociology) experience in the areas of

Commercial Operations, MIS
and Human Resource etc.

* (1) Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR), (2) CONCOR Air
Limited and (3) SIDCUL CONCOR Infra Company Limited and (4) Container
Gateway Ltd. till 11.10.23

** Chairman of CSR Apex Committee of CONCOR.

$ (1) CMA CGM Logistics Park (Dadri) Pvt. Ltd. (2) Star Track Terminals Pvt.
Limited (3) India Gateway Terminals Pvt. Ltd till 11.10.23 and (4) TCI
CONCOR Multinational Logistics Solutions Pvt. Ltd till 11.10.23.
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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (FHEL)
(A wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR)

Directors’ Report

To the shareholders

Your Directors’ are pleased to present their report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ending
31st March, 2024.

RE-ENGINEERING OF RAI FACILITY, OPERATION & MARKETING REVIEW

Due to changed business dynamics with implementation of Goods and Service Tax
(GST), customized storage requirements, intense competition with un-organized
sector, it had been decided in the year 2018 to Re-engineer the Rai facility in two
phases for development as an Agri-logistics Centre with changed business model
of leasing/renting out the warehousing space for Cold Storage, Controlled
Atmosphere (CA) storage and Custom Bonded Warehousing (CBW) to interested
parties.

Under Phase-I of Re-engineering Plan, the existing CA facility was modified with
infusion Rs.15.10 Cr. By CONCOR, to make it more versatile and suitable for
storage of variety of products apart from Apple.

Further, two new warehouses (30,160 sq. ft. each) were constructed under Phase-
IT with investment by CONCOR of Rs.12.02 Cr. FHEL has leased out these two
warehouses on mutually agreed terms for a period of 10 years.

The financial year 2023-24, has been mixed year for business especially for
Imports of fresh fruit cargo in Delhi-NCR area. Despite all the hardships, the facility
was running throughout the year. FHEL achieved turnover of Rs. 7.83 Cr. in the
financial year 2023-24. Further, during the year, Company increased its customer
base from 254 to 282 clients and also increased the range of products being stored.
As on 31.03.2024, 56 Chambers (6- Custom Bonded, 27- Chillers and 23- CA) were
rented out for storage of Apple, Dates, Almonds, Walnuts, Beer, Malta, etc.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, Operating turnover of your Company increased from
% 5.68 Cr. in F/Y 2022-23 to X 7.83 Cr. in F/Y 2023-24. Total income of Company
also increased from X 6.13 Cr. in FY 2022-23 to ¥ 8.02 Cr. in FY 2023-24. This
increase is on account of capturing additional customs cleared imported fruits
where the cargo turnaround is faster resulting in higher handling revenue in CA
Store and revenue realization from leasing of Phase-2 warehouses.

Cost of Sales decreased from X 4.56 Cr. in F/Y 2022-23 to X 4.17 Cr. in F/Y 2023-
24. The operating profit of Company increased from X 1.12 Cr. in FY 2022-23 to X
3.66 Cr. in FY 2023-24.

During FY 2023-24, the Company incurred Employee Benefits Expenses, Finance
costs and other expenses of ¥ 0.31 Cr., ¥ 0.13 Cr. and X 0.98 Cr., respectively.
After providing for depreciation & amortization expenses of Rs. 1.81 Cr, FHEL
earned its maiden net profit of ¥ 0.63 Cr. during F/Y 2023-24 in
leasing/warehousing business model as against net Loss of X 2.57 Cr. during
previous year 2022-23. As on 31.03.2024, accumulated losses of the company
stood at X 189.54 Cr.

DIVIDEND
No dividend has been recommended by the Directors for the year under review.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at ¥ 250 Cr. as on
31.03.2024. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company
as on 31.03.2024 is X 228.68 Cr.

CONCOR continued to hold 100% of the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of FHEL,
during the financial year 2023-24.

DEMATERIALISION OF SECURITIES

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 22.01.2019
exempted unlisted public company which is a Government Company or a wholly
owned subsidiary, from the provisions of compulsory dematerialisation of
securities.

FHEL, being an unlisted Government Company and also a wholly owned subsidiary
of CONCOR, is not required to get its shares dematerialised and admitted into
Depository system.
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SECURED LOAN

Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during F/Y 2023-24.
UNSECURED LOAN

Your Company has not taken any Unsecured loan during F/Y 2023-24.
DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposit from public as defined in Section 73 and 76
of the Companies Act, 2013, during the F/Y ended on 31.03.2024.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year 2023-24, no application has been made or proceedings pending under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016.

Further, provisions related to giving details of difference between amount of valuation
done at the time of one-time settlement and valuation done while taking loan from banks
or financial institutions, are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS U/S 186

FHEL has not given any loans or guarantee or made any investment covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

As per notification dated 5% June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, first and
second proviso to sub-section (1) of Section 188 under Chapter XII of Companies Act,
2013, were not applicable to a Government Company in respect of contracts or
arrangements entered into with any other Government Company.

Further, MCA vide its notification dated 2™ March, 2020 exempted the Government
Company from compliance with provisions of first and second proviso to sub-section (1)
of 188 in respect of contracts or arrangements entered into by Government Company with
any other Government Company, or with Central Government or any State Government
or any combination thereof.

However, the details of contracts or arrangements or transactions with Related parties are
stated under Note no. 41 of financial statements and also attached to this report in
prescribed format as required under Section 134(3)(h) of Companies Act, 2013.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As per notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government companies have been exempted to comply with the provisions of Section 197
of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter XIII. FHEL being a
Government company is not required to include aforesaid information as a part of the
Directors” Report. However, during the period under review, the Company had no
employee of the category falling under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel).

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize
employee performance and is an employer’s strategic objective. As on 31.03.2024, there
were 4 regular employees working in FHEL.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL provides two-way communication,
participative culture, open platforms for discussion for ideas and motivation of the
employees.

RESERVATION POLICY

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector
Enterprise (CPSE), is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by
the Government from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically
Handicapped and Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03.2024, there were 03-
General and 01- SC employee working in FHEL.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes & commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year and date of this
report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) prohibits any kind of act of Sexual Harassment at
work place and included the acts amounting to Sexual Harassment at Workplace in its
Conduct Rules and Certified Standing orders (as certified in 1998) and Discipline & Appeal
Rules so as to prohibit any such Act.
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FHEL has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to receive and investigate
complaints related to "Sexual harassment at workplace" following the guidelines issued
by Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in "Visakha Vs. State of Rajasthan". The committee
consists of four members including one external member who is practicing advocate in
Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryana, Chandigarh. Company Secretary is the Presiding
Officer of the committee.

During the FY 2023-24, no complaint has been received by the Committee.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R & D)

No new R & D activities were carried out during the period under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

FHEL is not mandated to incur any expenditure towards CSR in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under.

PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The particulars in respect of Conservation of energy and technology absorption are
detailed in the Annexure.

There is no Foreign Exchange earnings or outgo during the financial year 2023-24.
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

FHEL has identified the possible risks & mitigation plans arising in the key areas of the
Company. Implementation of risk mitigation/management measures, is reviewed by the
Audit Committee and Board periodically.

AUDITORS

Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India appointed M/s.
M.L. Kejriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, Delhi as Company’s Statutory Auditors for the

F/Y 2023-24. Statutory Auditor is paid remuneration of X 1,08,000/- plus Goods & Service
Tax, as fixed by Board of Directors'.
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The Statutory Auditors of your Company have given report on the accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2023-24 drawing attention under ‘Emphasis of Matter’ in
respect of sundry debtors etc. Management’s replies to the points raised by Statutory
Auditor are as under -:

Sr No.

Statutory Auditor’'s Remarks

Management Reply

Note no 8(c) to the financial statement
in respect of sundry debtors there is
uncertainty related to the outcome off
the lawsuit filed against various sundry
debtors. The company has taken
appropriate action in this respect.

All these cases are sub-judice in
legal proceedings and will be
decided as per course of law.

Note no 8(a) to the financial statement,
includes amount recoverable from
Customer (i) M/s Elements Exports

Rs.10,92,656/- and (ii) M/s SRC
Overseas Rs.70,037/- which are
outstanding for more than 1 year. No

recovery suit has been filed by company
against them.

M/s Elements Exports have
stored dry fruits (Walnut) in
Customs Bonded warehouse
and their cargo is still lying in
the warehouse. The amount
will be recovered before
delivery of the cargo to them.

Follow-up is going on with M/s
SRC Overseas for recovery of|
the dues. This product was
imported fresh fruit cargo i.e.
Nectarine which got spoiled
being perishable product due
to non-lifting of the cargo by
party and had been disposed

off.

Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide its letter no. DGA/RC/AA-FHEL/83-
84/2024-25/282 dated 27.08.2024 communicated its comments on financial statements
of the company for the financial year ended on 31.03.2024. Management reply to the
C&AG comments are attached as Addendum, forming part of this report. Further, FHEL is
not required to maintain Cost Records as specified u/s 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In accordance with the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under,
Company has appointed M/s. Amit Agrawal & Associates, Company Secretaries as
Secretarial Auditor, who have conducted Secretarial Audit for F/Y 2023-24. The Report of
Secretarial Auditor & Corporate Governance compliance certificate, without any adverse
observation/remark, are annexed herewith.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board met 4 (Four) times for transacting business of the Company during the financial
year 2023-24.

Shri V. Kalyana Rama, ceased to be Chairman of FHEL w.e.f. 01.10.2023 consequent upon
his superannuation from the post of Chairman and Managing Director (CMD) of Container
Corporation of India Limited (Holding Company). Board placed on record gratitude for the
services rendered by Shri V. Kalyana Rama, Ex-CMD/CONCOR & Chairman/FHEL, during
his tenure with FHEL.

Shri Sanjay Swarup, CMD/CONCOR joined as Chairman/FHEL w. e. f. 01.10.2023, in
accordance with provisions of Articles of Association of the Company.

Further, Shri Sharad Verma, ED/CONCOR was nominated as Director/FHEL w.e.f.
19.10.2023.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notifications dated 5% July, 2017 & 13t July,
2017 exempted unlisted wholly owned subsidiaries from the requirement of appointing
Independent Directors on their Board and constitution of ‘Audit Committee’ and
‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’.

Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its office memo F. No. 18(7)/2013-GM dated
16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of non-official Director(s)
on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the concerned Administrative
Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a
wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of
Railways so desires.

The following Directors are on the Board till the date of the Report-:

1. Shri Sanjay Swarup, CMD/CONCOR & Chairman /FHEL (DIN 05159435);

2. Shri Mohd. Azhar Shams, Director (Domestic)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL (DIN
07627473);

3. Shri Sharad Verma, Executive Director/CONCOR & Director/FHEL (DIN 07054970);

4. Smt. Ritu Narang, SGM(MIS)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL (DIN 10044126).

RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS BY ROTATION

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Sanjay Swarup, Chairman/FHEL,
is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

In terms of MCA notification dated 5% July, 2017 inserting Rule 4(2) to Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules. 2014, unlisted wholly owned subsidiary
company, is exempt from the requirement of appointing Independent Directors on the
Board.

Accordingly, FHEL a wholly owned unlisted subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt under the
Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made there-under from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD

As required by provisions of Companies Act, 2013, evaluation of performance of directors
including that of Independent Directors’ and the Board is to be carried out either by the
Board or by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by the Independent
Directors. It also requires disclosure of formulated criteria for performance evaluation in
this Report.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, through its notification dated 5% June, 2015 has exempted
Government Companies from these provisions.

However, it may be noted that Appointment of Directors of your Company is done by
holding company CONCOR, a PSU under Ministry of Railways. Minutes of Committee
Meetings, are placed before FHEL's Board. Minutes of Board meetings of FHEL are sent to
CONCOR for placing them before CONCOR'’s Board. Evaluation of Board Members is done
by CONCOR/Ministry of Railways, as per procedures laid down.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, Board
confirmed that -:

) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March,
2024, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(i) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year under review;
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(iii)  the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(iv)  the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31t March,
2024 on a ‘going concern’ basis;

(V) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively;

(vi)  the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted CONCOR's Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior
Management of the Company. Link of the Code of Conduct is available on website
www.concorindia.co.in.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is
hereby declared that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have
affirmed compliance of Code of Conduct for the financial year ended on March 31%t, 2024.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis, is enclosed and
forms part of Directors’ Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with requirements of Section 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013, Annual Return of
FHEL, is available at www.concorindia.co.in.

CONCLUSION

Your Company acknowledges the support and understanding extended by Container
Corporation of India Limited, Bankers and Auditors of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (Sanjay Swarup)
Date : 02.09.2024 CHAIRMAN
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Annexure to the Directors Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Container
Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) to carry on Cold chain business.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

FHEL’s mission is to provide sufficient handling and storage facilities for perishables in
India. The Company strives to provide value for money to its customers and fulfill
aspiration of its stakeholders by providing qualitative and efficient services and to conduct
its business according to best principles of good Corporate Governance as indicated by the
disclosures given in the Annexure.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CMD/CONCOR is the ex-officio Part-time Chairman on the Board of FHEL and all other members of Board are
nominated / appointed by CONCOR.

As on 31.03.2024, Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Four Part-time Directors including a
Chairman (Ex-officio) and one Women Director.

The Board met four times for transacting business during the financial year 2023-24 on the following dates -:

Board Meeting No. Board Meeting Dates
91 16" May, 2023
92 08" Aug., 2023
93 31% Oct., 2023
94 227 Jan., 2024

The Company has adopted CONCOR’s Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management of the
Company. The link of same is available on website www.concorindia.co.in.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is hereby declared

that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance of Code of Conduct
for the financial year ended March 315 2024.
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The Composition of Directors, attendance at the Board Meetings during the year 2023-24 and the last Annual General Meeting, the number of other directorships, chairmanship and committee memberships (as provided)

are given below -:

SI. No. Category of Directorship Name of Director No. of Atten- No. of Other Committee No. of Other
Board Dance Membership / Chairman- Directorship / Chairmanship
Migs At last Ship
Attended AGM
a Part-time Ex-Officio/Non-
Executive Chairman
1. Chairman & Managing | Sh. Sanjay Swarup* Three Yes One One Four Two
Director/ CONCOR (DIN : 05159435)
2. Chairman & Managing | Sh. V. Kalyana Rama** Two Yes One One Three Two
Director/ CONCOR (DIN : 07201556)
an Part-time/Non-Executive
Directors
3. Ditector (Domestic)/ CONCOR Sh. Mohd. Azhar Shams Four Yes Six Two Five Nil
(DIN : 07627473)
4. Executive Director, Area-1/ | Mr. Sharad Verma*#** Two No Nil Nil Four Nil
CONCOR (DIN No :07054970)
5. SGM (MIS)/CONCOR Ms. Ritu Narang Four Yes Seven One Three Nil
(DIN No : 10044126)

**Appointed as Chairman w.e.f. 01.10.2023
** Ceased to be Chairman w.e.f. 01.10.2023. As per details provided last year.

w0k Appointed as Director/ FHEL w.e.f. 19.10.2023.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, following officials are the Key
Managerial Personnel -:

Shri Alok Badkul, Chief Executive Officer (w. e. f. 11.10.2023)

Shri Santosh Sinha, Chief Executive Officer (ceased on 10.10.2023);
Shri Ravindra Bhat, Chief Financial Officer;

Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MCA vide its notifications dated 5" July, 2017 & 13th July, 2017 exempted wholly owned
subsidiary company from the requirement of appointing independent directors on the Board and
constituting ‘Audit Committee’, respectively. Thus, in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under as amended from time to time, FHEL being a
wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt from complying with the provisions of Section 177
of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of constitution of Audit Committee with requisite composition
of independent Directors and other matters prescribed there-under.

Further, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its office memo F. No. 18(7)/2013-GM
dated 16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of non-official Director(s)
on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the concerned Administrative
Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of Railways so desires.

However, in accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, Audit Committee
comprises of the following members -:

Sh. Mohd. Azhar Shams - Chairman
Sh. Sharad Verma - Member (w.e.f. 19.10.2023)
Smt. Ritu Narang - Member

Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial Year 2023-24 on 16.05.2023, 08.08.2023,
31.10.2023 and 22.01.2024.

Audit Committee meeting held on 08.08.23 was Chaired by Shri Sanjay Swarup being a member
of the Committee, before joining as Chairman/FHEL on 01.10.2023.
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The details of the attendance of the members in the Committee meetings held during F/Y 2023-
24 are as under -:

S. No. Name of Members No. of Committee
Meetings Attended

1. Sh. Sanjay Swarup One

2. Sh. Mohd. Azhar Shams Four

3. Sh. Sharad Verma Two@

4 Smt. Ritu Narang Four

@ Appointed as member of Audit Committee Meeting w.e.f. 19.10.2023.

The Committee reviews the Company's Annual / quarterly financial Results before submission to
the Board. The Committee attempts to ensure that decision making in the company is objective
and that there are adequate internal controls to ensure efficient realization of revenue, and due
propriety of expenditure.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notifications dated 5% July, 2017 & 13th July, 2017
exempted wholly owned subsidiary company from the requirement of appointing independent
directors on the Board and constituting ‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’, respectively.
Thus, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under as
amended from time to time, FHEL being a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt from
complying with the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of constitution of
Nomination & Remuneration Committee with requisite composition of Independent Directors and
other matters prescribed there-under.

Further, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its office memo F. No. 18(7)/2013-GM
dated 16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of non-official Director(s)
on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the concerned Administrative
Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of Railways so desires.

However, in accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, FHEL has constituted
Remuneration Committee, comprised of the following members -:

Sh. Mohd. Azhar Shams - Chairman
Sh. Sharad Verma - Member (w.e.f. 19.10.2023)
Smt. Ritu Narang - Member

Shri Rajesh Kumar, AM/HR is the Secretary of the Committee.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, One meeting of ‘Remuneration Committee’ was held.

No remuneration is paid to functional Directors of holding Company nominated/appointed by
CONCOR in FHEL. They draw their remuneration from CONCOR as per IDA Pay Scales and terms
& conditions determined by Govt.
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SUBSI

DIARY COMPANY

FHEL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of CONCOR and its turnover or net worth is less
than 20% of turnover or net worth, respectively of CONCOR (Holding Company). The Company

follows

Corporate Governance Guidelines and the practice of putting up of Minutes of Board

Meetings of FHEL to the BOD of Holding Company, viz. CONCOR.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of location, time and date of last three AGMs are as under -:
AGM Date Location Time

25.09.23

Container Corporation of India Ltd. 16:00 Hrs.
C-3, Mathura Road,
New Delhi - 110076

27.0922 e Do----- 15:00 Hrs.
02.09.21 e Do----- 15:30 Hrs.
AGM of Current Year
Date : 24.09.2024
Time : 16:00 Hrs.
Venue CONCOR Bhawan, C-3,
Mathura Road, New Delhi-110076
DISCLOSURES
(1) During the year, there was no transaction of material nature with the directors or their

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

relatives that had potential conflict with the interest of the company.

There were no instances of penalties/strictures imposed on the Company by any statutory
authority due to non-compliance on any matter related to any guidelines issued by
Government during the last three years.

In terms of Corporate Governance Guidelines & to adopt best practices therein, the
Company has ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ in place.

Your Company has filed report on Corporate Governance in specified format to CONCOR
(holding company) & DPE within stiputated time.

Compliance with the requirement of these guidelines, are detailed in this report.
FHEL has been following Presidential Directives.and Guidelines issued by the Govt. of
India from time to time regarding reservation of SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically

Handicapped & Ex-Servicemen in letter and spirit.

No Expenditure has been debited in the Books of Accounts, which is not for the purpose
of business.

The Company has not incurred any expense which is personal in nature and incurred for

the Board of Directors and Top Management.
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(ix)  Details of Administrative and office (Other) expenses as percentage of total expenses -:

Fin.Year Admn. & Office (Other) Total Expenses Percentage of Admn.
Exp. Rin Lakhs) (Xin Lakhs) & Office (Other) Expenses
Vis-a-vis Total
Expenses
2023-24 97.95 739.31 13.25%
2022-23 104.71 869.93 12.04%

(x) Transactions with related parties as per requirements of Accounting Standards issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are disclosed in relevant notes to the
Balance Sheet of the Company.

(xi) The Company has an adequate risk assessment and minimization plan. Certificate of
compliance of applicable laws, is being placed before the Board.

(xii)) Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI.
(xiii) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

(xiv) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Financial Results : The Annual Report and quarterly un-audited financial results are regularly
posted by the Company on website www.concorindia.co.in.

Annual Report : Annual Report containing inter-alia Audited Annual Accounts, Directors’
Report, Auditors’ Report and other information, is circulated to members and others entitled
thereto. Management Discussion & Analysis report forms a part of the Annual report.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL

MEETING

Name Date of | Date of | Qualification | Expertise in specific | List of | Details of
Birth appointment s functional areas Other Other
Compa | Committee
nies in | Membershi
which p
Directo
rship
Held
Shri Sanjay Swarup | 01.08.1966 | 01.10.2023 B. E. (Hons.) | Rich experience in Railway | Four* One**
(As Chairman) Electronics & | Operations, Commercial,
Communicati | Safety and  Information
27.09.2016 on from IIT | Technology functions. Also
(As Director) Roorkee and P | have expertise in design of
G  Diploma | Dry Ports and Multi Modal
(MBA) in | Logistics Parks (MMLPs) and
Public Policy | strategic planning.
&
Management
from 1M
Bangalore.
Shri Sharad Verma | 04.08.1966 19.10.2023 M.Phil Ex-Railway Officer having | Four$ | Nil
(Sociology) experience in the areas of

Commercial Operations, MIS
and Human Resource etc.

* (1) Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR), (2) CONCOR Air Limited and (3) SIDCUL CONCOR Infra
Company Limited (4) Container Gateway Limited (ceased on 11.10.23).

** Chairman of Apex CSR Committee of CONCOR.

$ (1) CMA CGM Logistics Park (Dadri) Pvt. Ltd. (2) Star track Terminals Pvt. Ltd. (3) India Gateway Terminals Pvt.
Ltd. (ceased on 11.10.23) (4) TCI CONCOR Multinational Logistics Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (ceased on 11.10.23).

Place : New Delhi
Date : 02.09.2024
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Sanjay Swarup)
CHAIRMAN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. Industry Structure & Developments :

Food/Agriculture and medical sectors are perhaps most important for the mankind and any
country. Accordingly, Food/Agri Sector is on priority list of present Indian government as well. In
the Agri sector, Fruits and Vegetables segment holds a prominent position. India is the second
largest producer of fruits & vegetables in the world. This in itself is a proof that Fruits and
Vegetables sector and businesses dealing with it hold immense business potential and an excellent
business opportunity.

The Fruits and Vegetables sector has its own challenges. Fruits & Vegetable business in India is
almost entirely unorganized. The farm sizes are small and traditionally growers either bring their
produce to nearby markets/mandies or send the produce to commission agents for sale. All the
players in the supply chain growers, commission agents, other middle men and retailers, are
totally unorganized. However, from the past few years few organized players like retail chains are
trying to establish themselves in the market place. Still due to the perishable nature of the
commodity, the emphasis on fresh produce in retail chains is very low and this also is bought
from nearby mandies only. Further, the country lacks Cold Chain infrastructure and therefore,
generally during the season we see glut in the market & prices dip to unsustainable levels. All
factors mentioned above lead to losses of produce.

Most of the Cold Store facilities available are traditional and lack of modern equipments.
However, from the past few years, modernized Cold storage facilities are being established in the
producing areas. There is a gap with respect to availability of state-of-the-art Cold Chain
Infrastructure & Knowledge of Storage of other Fruits & Vegetables. This presents both an
opportunity & a problem in this sector.

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA Store for storage of
apples. With the modifications carried out we will be able to offer services which will
accommodate traditional storage practices with better results due to the state-of-the-art
technology. Further, encouraged by the suitability of technology and associated benefits, private
sector has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting up of CA Stores in the country.
In last 17 years many facilities have come up in Delhi NCR and in apple growing states of
Himachal Pradesh and Jammu & Kashmir. This exponential increase in the capacity has resulted
in rather stunted the growth of imported apple, thereby, conserving precious foreign exchange for
the country. Despite all these developments the import of apples and other fruits, is still increasing
exhibiting further growth potential of CA storage/CCI in the country.
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SWOT ANALYSIS (Strength & Weakness) :

Strengths -:

a) Fruits & Vegetable market in India is huge & high percentage of perishability holds
tremendous business potential for Cold Chain Infrastructure segment.

b) The increase in the disposable income in hand of the consumer has led to year-round
demand for apples and hence larger demand for CA Storage.

c) Being in operation for last 17 years the target customers are reasonably sure of our
storage facility.

d) Being a PSU, the transparent and uniform policies and dealings with all leads to better
confidence among the clients.

e) There is huge latent demand for quality produce, as country is importing large
quantities of Fruits.

f) High Margins in this trade are possible, resulting in higher demand potential.

Weaknesses -:

a) The sector is highly unorganized.
b) Small players like growers are not able to reap the benefit of long term CA Storage
due to poor financial risk taking capacity.

c¢) Lack of storage cost bearing potential of other Fruits and Vegetables and also the
other products like rice, grains etc.

d) Lack of knowledge of Pre-Harvest care and Post-Harvest Management among the
clients leading to lesser interest in storing other products.

e) Retail Chains have not come up as expected and so organized distribution’s share is
still small.

f) The trade is by & large on credit to stakeholders who do not have bankable credentials.

Opportunity & Threats :

Opportunities -:

a) The proven results of apple storage in CA Stores in last 17 years has led to increased
storage and the number of clients and hence bigger business opportunity.

b) Improved living standards have led to higher and round the year demand of fruits in
the country and hence increased emphasis on long term storage of Fruits and
Vegetables.
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(c) Since every year fruit imports is growing impressively, it shows customers are
preferring quality fruit and thus organized business can make a significant
contribution.

Threats -:

a) High Capital cost leading to high rental rates.

b) 'Big investments made by private sector parties, like commission agents, growers etc,
by making both backward and forward linkages leading to shortening of the supply
chain.

¢) Non- availability of trained Manpower.

d) Increasing competition from Private player who have set up CA store in last few years.

e) Unethical practices of differential pricing adopted by the private player.

f) Offering bigger basket of services to the clients like free space for packing, extended

credit period to the clients on the basis of their goodwill etc.

Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance

The Company is dealing in storage of fresh fruits at Agri Logistic Centre, Rai, Sonepat
comprising of Bonded Cargo Warehousing (EXIM) and Domestic Cargo Warehousing
(DOM). All the activities of the Company revolve around this business and all the
operations are in India. As such, there is no other reportable segment defined by
Accounting Standard INDAS-108 related to Operating segment.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has in place well defined roles, responsibilities and authorities for
employees at various levels. This coupled with robust internal MIS systems, ensures
appropriate information flow to facilitate effective monitoring. Adherence to these
processes is monitored through frequent internal audits. The Company has internal audit
system that requires internal audit firm to certify the appropriateness of internal controls in
operation and checks deviations from laid down procedures. The Internal Auditor is the
external firm directly reporting to management at higher level, thus ensuring its
independence. Reports of internal auditor are reviewed and compliances are ensured.

SECURED LOANS
Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during F/Y 2023-24.
UNSECURED LOAN

Your Company has not taken any Unsecured loan during F/Y 2023-24.
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

Fixed Assets

(XinCr.)
Year Ended March 31 2024 2023 %oage Incr. (Decr.)
Original Cost of Assets incl. 93.37 80.38 16.16
ROU Asset (Kingal Land &
HSIIDC-INDAS-116)
Less : Accumulated Dep. 56.74 54.94 3.28
Net Fixed Assets 36.63 25.44
Inventory

As on 31.03.2024, there was no closing stock of fruits in FHEL.
Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are 58.20% of operating income of the year.
Cash & Cash Equivalent

The Company keeps available cash in flexi Fixed Deposits in Banks.
Income

Income from operations increased from % 5.68 Cr. in FY 2022-23 to X 7.83 Cr. in
F/Y 2023-24.
Cost of Sales

Cost of Sales decreased from X 4.56 Cr. in FY 2022-23 to % 4.17 Cr. in FY 2023-
24.

Other Expenses

Other expenses decreased from X 1.05 Cr. in FY 2022-23 to ¥ 0.98 Cr. in FY
2023-24.

Employee Remuneration

The Employee Cost has decreased from X 0.37 Cr. in FY 2022-23 to X 0.31 Cr. in
FY 2023-24.

Page 4 of 7
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16.

17.

Material Developments in Human Resources, Industrial Relations Front,
including number of people employed

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize
employee performance and is an employer’s strategic objective. As on 31.03.2024, there
were 4 regular employees working in FHEL.

Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL provides two-way communication,
participative culture, open platforms for discussion for ideas and motivation of the
employees.

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector (PSU),
is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the Government
from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically Handicapped and

Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03.2024, there were 03-General and 01- SC
employee working in FHEL.

Environment Protection and Conservation, Technological Conservation,
Renewable Energy Developments, Foreign Exchange Conservation

Measures taken for environmental protection and conservation:

The company has facility for rainwater harvesting pits at the CA Store, Rai where all the
rain water collected (on roof top of the store and pavement) is re-charged to the ground.

Air pollution is arrested by proper installation of chimney of DG Sets as per the norms of
Pollution control board.

Sound pollution of DG Sets is avoided by proper installation of Insulated canopy.

Disposal of sewer is made to the septic tank at CA Store, Rai, thereby causing no ground
pollution.

Water conservation is achieved by collecting waters in 442KL water tanks and timely
detection and rectification of water leakages.

Page S of 7
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18.

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

19.

Foreign Exchange Conservation :

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA Store for storage
of apples. With the modifications carried out we will be able to offer services which will
accommodate traditional storage practices with better results due to state-of-the-art
technology. Encouraged by the suitability of technology and associated benefits, private
sector has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting up of CA Stores in the
country. In last 17 years, many facilities have come up in Delhi NCR and in apple
growing areas of Himachal Pradesh and Jammu & Kashmir. This exponential increase in
the capacity has resulted in rather stunted growth of imported apples, thereby, conserving
precious foreign exchange for the country. Despite all these developments the import of
apples and other fruits, is still increasing exhibiting further growth potential of CA
storage/CCI in the country.

Outlook :

India is a huge country and the market for quality fruit & vegetables is growing rapidly.
India is the second largest producer of Fruits & Vegetables in the world. Hence the
opportunity available is large.

The country is prospering, leading to higher disposable income available in common
man’s hand. This has fueled the demand for healthier food products like Fruits and
Vegetables round the year, leading to higher demand for cold chain infrastructure across
the country.

Increasing trend exhibited by the import of Fruits and Vegetables.

Encouragement to FDI. The foreign companies are bringing the latest knowhow in the
country thereby creating newer business opportunity.

Risks & Concerns :

(i)  The business is dependent on weather conditions, particularly rainfall. It can be
adversely impacted with hailstorm during pre-harvest period.

(1))  Unorganized nature of the trade.

(iii))  Un-economical small farm holdings

(iv)  Lack of trained manpower

(v)  Local competition

(vi)  Unethical practices adopted by private players.

(vii) Differential pricing vis a vis transparent and uniform policy adopted by PSU’s.

(viii) Covid 19 or any other pandemic.

Page 6 of 7
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20. Corporate Social Responsibili CSR

FHEL is not mandated to incur any expenditure towards CSR in accordance with
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

21. Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Directors’ Report and Management Discussion & Analysis,
describing the Company’s objectives, projections and estimates, expectations,
predictions etc. may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of the
applicable laws and regulations. Forward looking statements contained herein are
subject to certain risks and uncertainities that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements. Actual results,
performances or achievements may vary materially from those expressed or
implied due to economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental
factors such as litigation and industrial relation etc. Readers are cautioned not to
place undue conviction on the forward-looking statements.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (Sanjay Swarup)
Date : 02.09.2024 CHAIRMAN
Page 7 of 7
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Annexure to Directors’ Report

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(1) The details of various measures taken during the year under various heads of
Energy Conservation are as follows -:

1. POWER CONSUMPTION FOR REFRIGERATION AND AIR CONDITIONING,
AUXILIARY UNITS

a) Energy Saving Screw Compressors and Chillers have been installed for refrigeration of
CA Store, Processing Area Air Conditioning and Office building. Also, Variable
frequency drives (VFDs) have been used for Refrigeration compressors, Cooling coil fan
motors (312 motors), Air cooling unit fan motors for Air-conditioning, Cooling tower
fan motors (4 motors), Carbon dioxide scrubbers.

b) Cooling towers and Condenser water pumps are operated based on ambient conditions
and actual requirement.

c) Optimization of Running of refrigeration compressors and air conditioning system.

d) Cleaning and replacement of air filters for air compressors, nitrogen generator
compressors and diesel generators.

2. Lighting :

Energy Conservation in lighting is achieved by use of Energy efficient tube lights for entire
plant, use of LED/CFL’s for office building, use of electronic ballasts, cleaning of light fittings
for optimum utilization of light illumination and lighting voltage optimization. During the year
special care was taken to ensure that lights operated only in areas where it was required. Area
identified and implemented were External lighting, utility area, corridors, sorting hall, packing
hall, machine room, and office building.

3. Heat energy :

Loss/Gain of heat energy in cold room is prevented by optimum thermal insulation thickness for
stores and cladding for pipe lines for minimal heat loss/ gain, cleaning of chilled water tubes,
condenser water tubes and Minimum Infiltration of external Air to Cold Store and processing area
by proper sealing of incoming and exit gates.
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4. Fueloil :

By regular and proper preventive maintenance and calibrations of components of diesel generators,
minimum fuel consumption is ensured. By putting off Nitrogen Generator plant, forklifts and
stacker charging, the load on the DG is reduced and these equipments are run when power supply
is available from electricity Boards.

5. Battery chargers for material handling equipments and other purposes:

Chargers are installed with automatic low current charging devices for energy saving.

Impact of measures taken for Energy Conservation

FHEL had changed its business model from procurement, storage & sale of apples to leasing of
CA Space. To conserve resources varied measures are being taken to reduce the Electricity
consumption. Electricity expenses for FY 2023-24 have been decreased to X 1.93 Cr. from X 2
Cr. of FY 2022-23.

(i1)The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy-: NIL

(i11) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments-: NIL
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B. Technology absorption

(1)

Efforts made  towards
technology absorption.

Due to changed business model of FHEL, no efforts were
made towards technology absorption.

(ii)

The Benefits derived like
product improvement, cost
reduction, product
development, and import
substitution.

Due to changed business model, no direct benefits are
derived to the company however storage in CA is helping
the concerned parties/buyers.

(iii)

In case of imported
technology (imported during
the last 3 years reckoned
from the beginning of the
financial year), following
information may be
furnished

(a). Details of Technology
imported

(b). Year of import

(c). Whether the technology
been fully absorbed

(d) If not fully absorbed,
areas where absorption has
not taken place and reasons
therefore.

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

(iv)

Expenditure incurred
onR&D

(1) Capital

(i) Recurring

(iii) Total

(iv) Total R & D expenditure
as a percentage of turnover

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
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FORM No. AOC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with the related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of section 188 of the companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:-

S. Name of | Nature of | Duration Salient features of | Justification Date of | Amount | Date on which
No. | the related | contracts/arrangeme | of contracts/arrangem | for entering | approval by | paid as | special
party and | nts/transactions contracts/ | ents/transactions, into such | the advances, | resolution was
nature of arrangeme | including value, if | contracts/Arr | Board/Audit if any passed in
relationshi nts/transa | any angements/tr | committee general meeting
p ctions ansactions u/s 188(1)(h)
---------- NIL
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:-
S. Name of the | Nature of | Duration of | Salient features of | Date of approval by the | Amoun | Date on which
No. | related party | contracts/ contracts/arra | contracts/arrangeme | Board/Audit committee t paid | special
and nature of | arrangements | ngements/tran | nts/transactions, as resolution was
relationship /transactions | sactions including value, if advanc | passed in
any es, if | general
any meeting u/s
188(1)(h)
Container Holding On going To provide sufficient | Refer Note-1 N/A N/A
Corporation of | Company handling & storage
1 India Ltd. facilities for
perishiables in India,
with a view to
reduce/control
wastages of
perishiable food

products in India.

Note:

1. FHEL was set up with due approval of Board of Directors of CONCOR during the relevant period & transactions with holding
company are in normal course of business and at arm’s length. The particulars of transactions with related party are stated in the
notes to Financial statements of Company for F.Y. 2023-24.
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ADDENDUM TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR FY 2023-24

Para
Reference

Comments of the C&AG of
u/s 143(6)(b) of the Companies
Act, 2013 on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the year ended 31
March 2024

India

Reply of the Management

Comments on Financial Position:

Assets-(1) Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment-Note-2
Rs.3662.28 Lakh

Plant and Machinery-Rs.888.46 Lakh
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended 31st March,2024

IV-Expenses-

(f) Depreciation and amortization
expenses (Note 32)- Rs.180.57 Lakhs
The ‘Plant and Machinery’ included
“office Equipment” having gross value
of Rs.22.47 lakh as on 31/03/2023
and remaining Net Block’ of Rs.8.53
lakh as on 31/03/2024. The Company
had provided depreciation on ‘Office
Equipment’ considering their useful of
15 years instead of 5 years as provided
in Part-C of the Schedule-II of the
Companies Act, 2023.

Accordingly, the ‘Office Equipment’
included in ‘“Plant and Machinery’
should have been fully depreciated as
on 31/03/2024 as their useful life had
exceeded five years.

This had resulted into overstatement of
Plant and Machinery and ‘Profit after
Tax by Rs.8.53 lakh as well as
understatement of ‘Depreciation and
Amortization expenses’ by the same
amount.

With regard to providing the
depreciation under the head ‘Plant
and Machinery’, it is submitted
that Office Equipment grouped
under this head are installed in the
plant as part of Plant & Machinery.
Hence life has been taken as 15
years.

However, the observation of the
audit is noted.

Date:

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

02.09.2024

Place: New Delhi
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(Sanjay Swarup)
Chairman




Amit Agrawal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Office : H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092, INDIA
Ph. : +91-11-49423788, 43019279, Mob.: +91-9811272307
E-mail : amitagcs@gmail.com, amit2kas@yahoo.com

To,

The Members,

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Concor Bhawan C-3 Mathura Road

Opp. Apollo Hospital. New Delhi-110076, IN

Dear, Sir/Madam

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

L.

2

(OS]

Signature

(CS Amit Agrawal) o,
Practicing Company Secretary

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Date: 06.07.2024

Place: Delhi

Membership No.5311
Certificate of Practice No. 3647
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Amit Agrawal & Associates
Gompany Secretaries

Office : H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092, INDIA
Ph. : +91-11-49423788, 43019279, Mob.: +91-9811272307
E-mail : amitagcs@gmail.com, amit2kas@yahoo.com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH., 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointmentand Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] -

To,
The Members,
Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

CONCOR Bhawan C-3 Mathura Road
Opp Apollo Hospital, New Delhi-110076

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
(hereinafter called the Company) having its registered office at Concor Bhawan, C-3 Mathura
Road, Opp Apollo Hospital, New Delhi-110076. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March, 2024 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited for the financial year ended on 31%
March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(if) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(iif) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:
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a) The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

b) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

¢) Payment of Minimum Wages Act, 1948

d) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

e) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal
Act), 2013

f) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

g) Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948;

h) Indian Trust Act, 1882 created for PF purposes for its employees.

i) Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

j) Food Safety and Standard of India Act, 2011

k) The Factory Act, 1948

1) Compulsory Notification of Vacancy Act 1959

m) Payment of Wages Act

n) Workman's and Compensation Act

0) The Gratuity Act

p) Equal Remuneration Act

q) Industrial Dispute Act

r) Employment of Children Act

s) Indian Stamp Act

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

However, During the period under review, provisions of the following regulations were not
applicable to the Company because of clause (I) no FDI and ECB has been taken by the
Company since incorporation and for (II) & (III) clauses below the Company is unlisted
Company. Hence, comments are not required to be made in respect of these clauses:

. Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and rules and regulation made there under fo
* the extent Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings.

I1. The Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’).

III. The Listing Agreement with any Stock Exchange.
We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors and Women Director. The Changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. -

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct
and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been
reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit by
other designated professional.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events /actions in pursuance
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. having a major bearing
on the Company’s affairs.

Place: Delhi
Date : 06.07.2024

/ CS Amit Agrawal
g (Partner)
M No. F5311, C.P. No. : 3647

UDIN: F005311F000682911
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Amit Agrawal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Office : H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092, INDIA
Ph. : +91-11-494 23788, 43019279, Mob.: +91-9811272307
E-mail : amitagcs@gmail.com, amit2kas@yahoo.com

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members,

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
CONCOR Bhawan C-3 Mathura Road
Opp Apollo Hospital, New Delhi-110076

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Fresh &
Healthy Enterprises Limited, (herewith referred as ‘the Company’) for the year ended on 31
March, 2024 as stipulated in ‘Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and
Public Enterprises Government of India.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in
above mentioned guidelines. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statement of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as
stipulated in above mentioned DPE guidelines.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency of the effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

Place : Delhi For Amit Agrawal & Associates
Companigs Secretaries)
[ )

N

CS Amit Agrawal

Partner
o F5311, C.P. No. : 3647
UDIN: F005311F000727296

Date : 12.07.2024
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G01145734)

Balance sheet

As at March, 31, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)
As at As at
Earticuisn NoteNo-  \arch31, 2004 March 31,2023
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 3,662.28 254353
() Intangible assets 0.27 0.50
(c) Capital work in progress 3 - 960.60
(d) Financial assets
(i) Loans 4 0.38 0.01
(1i} Other financial assets 5 47.76 47,29
{e) Deferred tax assets (Net) s =
(f) Other non-current assets 5 30.16 22.49
3,740.85 3,574.42
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 0.02 0.02
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables B 455.97 270.56
{ii] Loans g 0.13 0.12
(ili} Cash and cash equivalents 10 87.09 385.78
(iv) Other bank balances 11 6.00 5.69
(v) Other financial assets 12 6.21 7.00
(c) Current tax assets (Net) 13 30.62 17.61
(d) Other current assets 14 33.38 72.95
619.42 759.53
Total assets 4,360.27 4,333.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(&) Equity share capital 15 22868.20 22,868.20
(b) Other equity
Reserves and surplus 16 (18,912.96) (18,975.72)
Total equity 3,955.24 3,892.48
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - -
(1) Lease Liabilities 17 129.09 13461
(iii}) Other financial liabilities - -
(b) Long-term provisians 18 18.34 15.99
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - -
(d) Other non-current liabilities - -
147.43 150.60
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 - =
(ii) Lease Liabilities 20 22.40 2835
(iii) Trade payables 21
(a) Total outs’cand.mg dues of micro enterprises 556 5.66
and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises ) )
(iii) Other financial liabilities 22 217.85 247.57
(b) Other current liabilities 23 9.61 7.20
(c) Short-term provisions 24 2.08 2.09
257.60 290.87
Total liabilities 405.03 441.47
4,360.27 4,333.95
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to59

In terms of our report attached
For M.L. Kejriwal & Co.

Chartered Accountant
FRN No.-008234N

CA Siddharth Kejriwal

Partner
M.No.552001

UDIN No: 'J.L#S 51001_ rt')k—G DC(-'GT:;

Date: 14-05-2024
Place: New Delhi

ﬁ;@ﬁa;

Sanjay Swarup
Chairman

T
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G0I1145734)

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the Year ended 31st March,2024

(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year

For the year

Particulars Note No.  ended March 31, ended March 31,
2024 2023
I Revenue from operations 25 783.42 567.89
Il Other income 26 19.05 44.64
Il Total Income (I +11) 802.47 612.53
IV Expenses
(a) Purchases of traded goods 27 - .
(b) Change in inventories 28 -
(c) Direct expenses 29 417.00 455.84
(d) Employee benefits expenses 30 31.00 36.58
(e) Finance cost 31 12.79 13.12
(f/ Depreciation and amortization expenses 32 180.57 259.68
(g) Other expenses 33 97.95 104.71
Total expenses 739.31 869.93
V  Profit/(Loss) before tax (Ill - IV) 63.16 (257.40)
VI Tax Expense
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Deferred Tax -
Total tax expense - -
VIl Profit/(Loss) after tax for the period (V - V1) 63.16 (257.40)
VIl Other comprehensive income
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan, net of income tax (0.40) (0.04)
Total other comprehensive income for the period (0.40) (0.04)
IX Total comprehensive income for the period (VII + Vi) 62.76 (257.44)
X  Profit/(Loss) per equity share of Rs.10 each:
(1) Basic (Rs.) 0.03 (0.11)
(2) Diluted (Rs.) 0.03 (0.11)
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1ta 59
In terms of our report attached
For M.L. Kejriwal & Co.
Chartered Accountant
FRN No.-008234N
M ogt' J:C_ﬂ;q . A & n bl
4 - P
Sanjay Swarup Mo%mm var Sfams Alok Badku[
CA Siddharth Kejriwal Chairman Director
Partner
M.N0.552001
, . AL hr\ c-\ r'~‘
UDINNo: 2456 ) 001 BKADCCIETS i W
Date: 14-05-2024 Suman Lata Ravindra Bha

Place: New Delhi
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51809DL2006G01145734)
Statement of Changes in equity

For the Year ended 31st March,2024

(All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Equity share Share premium Retained earnings Total
Particulars capital
Balance at March 31, 2022 22,047.20 41.33 (18,759.61) 3,328.92
Changes during the period 821.00 - - 821.00
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (257.40) (257.40)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (0.04) (0.04)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (257.44) (257.44)
Balance at March 31, 2023 22,868.20 41.33 (19,017.05) 3,892.48
Changes during the period - - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year % - 63.16 63.16
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (0.40) (0.40)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 62.76 62.76
Balance at March 31, 2024 22,868.20 41.33 (18,954.29) 3,955.24
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to59

In terms of our report attached

For M.L. Kejriwal & Co.
Chartered Accountant
FRN No.-008234N

L]

PEEL

-

Sanjay Swarup MohammatAthar-Stiaid Alok Badkul
CA Siddharth Kejriwal Chairman Director CEO
Partner =
M.No.552001 7

('

VNN DU E S 2 004BY-Gp e 167 gxf—' MO e
Date: |4 05-lo2 Y Suman Lata Ravindra Bhat
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909D12006G0I145734)
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particilars Notes No. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit/{loss) after tax 63.16 (257.40)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amartisation 180.57 259.68
Interest income {16.03) (12.33)
Non Operating income (1.77) (27.61)
Interest on security deposit given 10.47) (0.43)
Interest expense on lease Liability 1279 13.12
Net {Profit)/ loss on sale / discarding of fixed assets - (0.77)
Operating profit before working capital changes 238.25 (25.74)
Adjustments for changes in king capital :
- {Increase)/decrease other non current financial assets (0.47) (0.42)
- {Increase)/decrease in other non current assets {7.20) 1.02
- (Increase)/decrease in inventories 3 -
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables {185.41) 44.98
- (Increase)/decrease other current financial assets 0.17 D44
- (Increase)/decrease in other current assets 35.37 33.55
- Increase/(decrease) in long term provisions 1958 199
- Increase/{decrease) other financia! liabilites (27.95) [105.749)
- Increase/(decraase) lease liabilities (10.26) 89.53
- Increase/(decrease) in other current financial liabilities 241 (9.71)
- Increase/(decrease] in short term provisians (0.01) 0,07
Cash (used in)/generated by operating activities 50.85 35.53
- Income taxes (paid)/ refund (13.01) 8.21
Net cash (used in)/generated by operating activities 37.84 43.74
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets {1,299.09) (313.61)
Capital Work In Progress 960.60 (306.65)
Sale of fixed assets = 0.97
Loans to employees 10.38) 0.12
Earmarked deposits placed with banks {0.31) {0.25)
Maturities of deposits with banks
Interest racaived 16.65 11.19
Net cash generated by investing activities (322.53) (608.23)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities:
Payment of lease liabilities (14.00) {11.95)
Repayment/ proceeds of Borrowings
Equity received from Holding company = 821.00
Net cash (used in)/generated by financing activities (14.00) 809.05
Net increase/({decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (298.69) 244,56
Cash and cash equival at the beginning of the year 385.78 141.22
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10, 11 87.09 385.78
Notes:

The above Statement of Cash flows has been prepared in accordance
with the “Indirect Method" prescribed in the Indian Accounting
Standard(ind AS}-7 on "Statement of Cash Flows".

-

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise
the following:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash in hand = -
Balance with banks
in current accounts 29.46 18.13
in Flexi Fixed Deposit Accounts 57.63 366.65
87.09 385,78

Non cash transactions:

The company did not enter into any nen cash investing and financing activities which are not reflectad in the statement of cash flows.

Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to 59

For M.L. Kejriwal & Co.

Chartered Accountant
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Notes to the financial statements

E1: MATERIA OUNT OLICIES

FRESH AND HEALTHY ENTERPRISE LIMITED

=

Corporate Information

Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited (the “"Company”), a whaolly owned subsidiary of Container
Caorporation of India Limited (CONCOR) is engaged in procurement and sale of fruits, creation of
cold storage infrastructure in India and leasing of Controlled Atmosphere (CA) chambers and allied
services, to provide complete cold chain logistics solutions to the various stakeholders in this field.
It is classified as Union Government Company and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Delhi.
The Company was incorporated in 2006 and is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Container
Corporation of India Limited (CONCQOR).

2.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind ASs’) notified by the Central Government under section 133 of the Indian Companies

Act, 2013 as Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended from
time to time.

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basic except financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each
reporting period. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of IND AS 116 and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

Recent pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other
infarmation, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary
users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that
it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.



Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting
estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a
definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company
does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

Property, plant and equipment:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if
any, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, finance costs. Cost is net of interest on capital advances and duty
credits and is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses. In
respect of assets due for capitalization, where final bills/claims are to be
received/passed, the capitalisation is based on the engineering estimates. Final
adjustments, for costs and depreciation are made retrospectively in the year of
ascertainment of actual cost and finalisation of claim. Items such as spare parts,
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised in accordance with this
Ind AS 16 when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

Capital work in progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for

their intended use and the cost of assets not put to use before the Balance Sheet
date.

Provision for stamp duty at the prevailing rate is made by the company at the time of
capitalization of the amount paid for acquisition of land & is capitalised as part of the
cost of Land.

Depreciation/amortization:

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful life and in the manner
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013,

Land leases where the lease term is for the significant economic life of the asset are
considered as finance leases. Such leases are included in property plant and
equipment and are deprecated over the lease period. Freehold land or perpetual land
leases are not deprecated. Land leases where the lease term is not for the significant
economic life of land are considered as operating leases and are classified as
prepayments. Such leases are amortized over the lease term.

The estimated useful life and deprecation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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9.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Expenditure on computer software, which is not an integral part of
hardware, is capitalized as an intangible asset. The cost of software includes license fee and
implementation cost and is capitalized in the year of its implementation. Software is
amortized over five years being management's estimate of life of assets aver which economic
benefits will be derived. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at cost or Net Realizable Value (NRV), whichever is lower. Cost
comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on specific identification
method for fresh fruits and First in First out (FIFQ) method for other inventories.

Employee benefits:

(i)  Liability for gratuity, leave salary, sick leave and medical reimbursements benefits
payable to employees is provided for on accrual basis using the Projected Accrued
Benefit Method (Projected Unit Credit Method with control period of ane year) dane by

an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

e Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtailments and settlements);

* Net interest expense or income; and

* Remeasurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or

loss in the line item [‘employee benefits expenses]. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recagnised in other comprehensive
income will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit
or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the

discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset,
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10.

11.

12.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the company’s defined benefit plans, Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

Termination benefits are immediately recognised in the statement of profit or loss
account. A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognises any related restructuring costs.

(ii) Contribution to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund and Family Pension
Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss as and when accrued.

(iii) The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid for the
services rendered are recognized as an expense during the period when the
employees render the services.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods/services is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates,
Sales are recognized when the significant risk and reward of ownership of goods are

transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty as to its determination or
realization exists,

Income from automatic sorting and grading through machine and handling income is
recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract, provided there is no
significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration.

Interest income from deposits is recognized on accrual basis. Interest other than deposits is
recognised at the time when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realization
exists. Interest on income tax refunds are accounted for on the finalization of assessments.

Rental income, cooling charges and income from space for sorting packing machine/
strapping machine is recognized aon accrual basis.

Claims/counter-claims/penalties/awards:

Claims/counter-claims/penalties/awards are accounted for in the year of its settlement.

Taxes on income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
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14.

temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions, contingent liabilities & contingent assets:
(i) Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying

amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

(ii) Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate

of the amount cannot be made.
(iii) Contingent assets:

Contingent assets are not recognized in the accounts. However they are disclosed
when the possible right to receive exists.
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16.

17.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share ('EPS’) are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity

equivalent shares outstanding during the period except where the result would be anti-
dilutive,

Cash and Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately
from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand -alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

T aompany as a less

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease,.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

For operating leases, the rental income/lease payments received are recognized on straight-
line basis over the lease term,

For finance leases, finance income is recognized over the lease term based on a pattern
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When
the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for Its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. The Company assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset. However, if a head lease is a short-term lease, wherein the Company has

accounted lease payments on straight line basis, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

Th a lessee

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use
assets ('ROU’) and a corresponding lease liability for all the lease arrangements in which it is
a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low

value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

In determining the lease term, Company considers the Option to extend/terminate the lease,
wherever it is reasonably certain to exercise such option.
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Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future Lease payments due to the
lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate
implicit in the lease and in case it is not determinable, Company's incremental borrowing rate
on commencement of the lease is used. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics,
the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate
specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value
guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The Company only include
variable lease payments in measurement of the lease liability if they depend on index or
rate. Other variable lease payments are charged to statement of profit & loss. The lease
liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to
reassessment/ modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of
profit and loss depending upon the nature of reassessment/modification. However, lease
modification is accounted as separate lease if the modification increases the scape of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets and the consideration for
lease increases by an amount commensurate with stand-alone price for the increase in the
scaope.

The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any re- measurement of the lease liability.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term or remaining

useful life of the underlying assets as prescribed in IND AS 16 (PPE)/Schedule II of
Companies Act 2013, whichever is shorter.

Segment reporting

The Companies’ segmental reporting is in accardance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segments.
Operating segments are reported in a3 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the board of directors, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, and has been identified as the chief operating
decision maker.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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21,

Subsequent measurement

The company’s financial assets represents assets whose contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and these assets are held in a business model to
hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows at maturity consequentially in

accordance with Ind AS 109 these assets are carried at amortized cost using effective interest
rate.

The Company’s financial liabilities are not held for trading and are also carried at amortized
cost using effective interest rate.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset and financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are discharged.,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial asset

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets,

Trade receivable

As a practical expedient the Company has adopted ‘simplified approach’ using the provision
matrix method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The provision matrix is
based on historical default rate observed over the expected life of the trade receivable and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. Further receivables

are segmented for this analysis where the credit risk characteristics of the receivables are
similar.

Other financial assets

Impairment loss on other financial assets is recognised based on the difference between the
present value of the expected cash flows and carrying value.

Key sources of uncertainties

Useful life of Property plant and Equipment and Intangible assets: As described at 5 and 6
above, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The estimate of useful life may be

different on account of change in business environment and change in technology which
could have a material impact on the financial statement.
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:USHDSDLZOOGGOIMS?S#}
Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Note - 3 : Capital work in Progress

Particulars As at

March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Capital work in progress

960.50

Total

In the on-going engineering projects of
measurement in all
progress.

respects in terms of the contract for

(a) CWIP aging schedule
As at 31st March,2024

the Company, at the end of the year,
the said project supported by bills,

960.60
on the basis of the work that has been completed on the basis of last

provision Is made, which is shown under capital work in

T in lakhs
Cwip Amount in CWIP far a period of Total
More
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years| thand3
rs
Projects.in pOrograss - = - = -
Projects Temporarily suspanded
As at 31st March,2023 ¥ in lakhs
cwip Amountin CWIP for a periad of Total
More
Lessthan 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3y=ars| thano3
YEars
Prajects in progress 306.65 477.10 141.64 35.21 960.60
ijactslemporarl]y suspendad
(b) For capital-work-in Progress, whose completion is averdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, following cwip
completion schedule shall be given;
As at 31st March,2024 T in lakhs
To be completed in
" 1 More than
cwip Less than 1 year 1-2 .nearsl 2-3years s
[Dslauls of projects where aclivity has been Suspended NIL I
As at 31st March,2023 T inlakhs
To be completed in
Less than 1 year 12 23 yaars| V0@ than
cwip &35 than yea years ¥ 5 3\'EE|”S
Phasa-ll Civil work 165,34 - -

Details of projects whatre activity has been suspended

[T

Note -4 : Loans

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Secured, Considered Good - at amortised cost

Loans to Employees 0.28 0.01

Total 0.38 0.01

Note - 5 : Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Security deposits

Unsecured, considered good

- Govt. Autharities 47.76 47.29

Total 47.76 47.29
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Note -6 : Other non current assets

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Prepaid rent 3.06 3.45
Prepayments - leasehold land 18.83 19.04
Lease rent income equalisation reserve 8.27 -
Total 30.16 22.49
Note - 7 : Inventory
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares 0.02 0.02
Total 0.02 0.02

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year

inventories :NRV/cost price whichever is lass,

Trade Receivables
Financial asset
Note - 8 : Trade Receivables

was Rs.Nil (for the year ended March 31, 2023: Rs.Nil). The moede of valuation of

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Outstanding for period exceeding six Months 218.28 187.36
Qutstanding for period less then six Months 237.69 83.20
Total 455.97 270.56
8a) Trade Recelvables ageing schedule
As at 31st March,2024 T in lakhs
Particulars A B c D=A+B+C

Unbilled Trade | Trade Receivable Qutstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment
Receivable not due Lessthan 6 [& months - More than
sFioiats Tykas 1-2 years | 2-3 years At Tatal
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 22524 4.50 10.93 0.70 0.90 242.27
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivablas — which have significant
|increase in credit nisk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considerad good 12.45 12.61 38.62 - 150.02 213.70
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impairad
Unbilled dues NIL
As at 31st March,2023 T in lakhs
Particulars A B c D=A+B+C
Unbilled Trade Trade Racaivible Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Receivable not due Lessthant |6 months - More than
e filiair 1-2 years | 2-3 years B yesrs Total

(i} Undisputed Trade recaivables - considerad good 70.35 5.38 3.85 0.01 0.91 80.50
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
Increase in credit risk
(lii}) Undispuied Trade Receivables — cradi impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables—considered good 12.85 17.28 9.50 0.46 14957 190.06
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
Increase in credit risk
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
Unbilled dues MIL
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moderate exposure to the credit risk owing to the balance of trade receivable. To Tackle
material/services against payment. The Company has filed the legal cases in respect of s
legal cases. Thus, the company has maderate exposure to credit risk,

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision
matrix takes inta account histarical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information, The expected eredit loss allowance is based on the ageing
of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the pravision matrix, The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as fallows.

8b) Agei Expected Credit Expected
loss(%) Credit loss(%)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Outstanding for period less than six months - -
Outstanding for period exceeding than six months
Age of receivables
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Outstanding for period less than six monthe 237.69 B3.20
Qutstanding for period exceeding than six manths 218.28 187.36
Total 455,97 270.56
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year “ ;
Addition in expected credit loss allowance - %
Amount written off

Balance at the end of the year

The Concentration of credit risk is moderate due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated. Customers respresent more than 5% of the total
balance of trade receivahles comprise of following:

As at Asat
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Mahaluxmi Cold Storage - 15.23
R K Brothers 26.64 26.64
GAPL 85.73 85.73
Adarsh Fruits 50.12 26.00
J.C Agro 41.32 =
SRF International 45.41 2952
Arjun Kumar Dhanaram & Sons 45,13 -

8c) The Company has filed the legal cases in respect of the following customers:

As at As at
Parties March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Cases where Arbitration/Legal case/Appeal has been filed
(i) GAPL 85.73 85.73
(ii)Tarun Kumar 12,65 12.65
(iil) Ram Chandra & Sons 7.33 7.33
(iv)Mahaluxmi Cold Storage 15.23 15.23
(v)R.K.Brothers 26.64 26.54
(vi) Madadh Poultry Farm C/o Sushil lindal 1.9 199
(vil) Surjeet Rana 0.46 0.46
(viil) SRF International & SE4 Enterprises 63.68 40.04
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Note -9 : Loans

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Secured, Considered good - at amortised cost
Loans to employees including interest accrued 0.13 0.12
Total 0.13 0.12

Note - 10 : Cash and cash eqivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Bank Balances:

in current accounts 29.46 19.13
in Flexi Fixed Deposit Accounts 57.63 366.65
Total 87.09 385.78

Note - 11 : Other bank balances

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Bank Balances held as margin money or security
against guarantees 6.00 5.69
Total 6.00 5.69

Note - 12 : Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Claims recoverable 5.54 5.54
Interest accrued but not due 0.67 1.29
Others - 0.17
Total 6.21 7.00

Note - 13 : Current tax assets (Net)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance income tax/TDS (Net of provisions) 30.62 17.61
Total 30.62 17,61
Current Assets

Non financial assets
Note - 14 : Other current assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advances to employees 0.74 0.77
Advances Others 4.2 4.22
GST (Input) 18.60 57.14
Prepaid rent 0.38 0.38
Prepayments - leasehold land 0.21 0.21
Prepaid expenses/ insurance 9.23 10.03
Total 33.38 72.75
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:US1909DL2006G01145734)
Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Mote 15 : Equity
Particulars Ayt Asat
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Authorised Capital :
25,00,00,000 Equity share @ Rs10/- per share (P.Y, 25,00,00,000
, 0004 5,000.00
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- per Share) 2 i £
25,000.00 25,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up:
22,86,82,048 Fully paid-equity shares of ¥ 10 each as at March 31; 22.868.20 22.868.20
2024: {P.Y. 22,86,82,048 Fully paid equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
Total 22,868.20 22,868.20

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of Rs.10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.
Fully paid equity shares (In Lakhs)

N of
Particulars Number of shares pmbay
shares
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2,286.82 2,204.72
changes during the period* - 82.10
Balance as at March 31, 2034 2,286.82 2,286.82
* Right Issue subscription by CONCOR
Details of shares held by the holding com; ¥, Its sub ies and assoclates
As at Asat
Fattoutars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Container Corporation of India Limited, the holding company 2,286.82 2,286.82
Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
As at As at
P
bl March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Number of shares Number of
I
Fully paid equity shares (In Lakhs) held shosesiald
Container Corporation of India Limited, the helding company 228682 2,286.82

% holding of % holding of
equity shares equity shares
Container Corporation of India Limited, the holding company 100% 100%

Shareholding of Promoters® as under:

Ags at 31st March, 2024
% Changa
Shares hald by promaters at the end of the year during the
ymarts®
5 No Promoter nama®  |No, of Shares™® Ao tor:
sharss
Total e i 228582 | 100% 0
of India Ltd.
As at 31st March,2023
% Change
Shares held by promoters at the end of the YERE dunng tha
yoars+*
5. Mo Pramoter name*  |No; of Shares®* ot tonal
sharas
Container Corporation
Total 2,286, a
i of India Lrd. ERaRay, o

Promater here means promoter as defined in the Co mpanies Act, 2013,
** Details shall be given separately for each class of sharas

percentage change shall be computed with respact 1o the number at the beginning of the year of If issued during the year for the first time then with respect ta the date of lssus,

Note 16 : Reserves and surplus

y Asat Asat
e March31,2024  March 31,2023
Share Premium 4133 41.33
Retained Earnings [18,912.96) (19.017.05)

(18,871.63) 18,975.72)
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Nate - 16.1 : Share Premium

As at As at
s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 4133 4133
Mavement during the year - %
Balance at the end of the year 4133 41.33

Share Premium is recorded for the difference between the par value of 3 company's shares and the total amount campany has received for the shares issued. The Company
£an use the balance of the account for the purposes as specified in the provisions of Companies Act, which includes to pay off equity expenses, which Include underwriter
fees. It can also be used for the Issuance of bonus shares and for costs or expenses related to this issuance.

Note - 16.2 : Retained earnings

As at As at
FRrcRles March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year (18,017.05) (18,758.61)
Profit/(Loss) during the year 63.16 [257.40)
Other comprehensive i@me arising from remeasurement of (0.40) (0.04)
defined benefit obligation
Balance at the end of the year (18,954.29) (189,017.05)

Note 17 : Financial Liabilities-Lease Liabilities

Particul As at As at
Srtoulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

At amortised cost

Lease Liability-Kingal Land (IND AS-116) 6328 62.71
Lease liability-HSIIDC (IND AS.116} 65.81 7190
Total 129.09 134.61

Note 18 : Long term provisions

Particul As at As at

b March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits 18.34 15.99
Total 18,38 15.99

Note 19 : Borrowings

Particulars Asat sl

i March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Unsecured - at amortised eost
Bank overdraft B = -
Total z P
Note 20 : Financial liabilities: Lease Liabilities

As at Asat

Farticulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Lease Liability-Kingal Land (IND AS-116) 1045 16.40
Lease Liability-HSIIDC (IND A5-116) 11.95 11,85
Total 22.40 28.35

Note 21 : Trade payables

) Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 5.66 5.66

- Total sutstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises
and small enterprises

Total 5.66 5.66

The company pays its vendors Immediately when the invoice is accounted and no interest during the year has been paid or is payabla, {Ref Note no.48 for disclasure made

under terms of Micra small And Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006). The company has the practice to ensure that al| payables are paid within the pre-agreed Credit
terms,

Trade Payables aging schedule

As at 31st March,2024 T in lakhg
A B C D=A+8+C
Gutstanding for foiluwing periads from due date of payments
Unbilied Trade payable Dt F:::h" e
Particulars bt thianil I-2years | 1-2years | 2-3years Mot tine Tatal
year 3 years
(I} MSME - -
{ii} Othars - -
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - < - 5.66 5.66
(v Dizputed dises - Others : = =
|unbitied dues | NIL
As at 31st March,2023 T in lakhs
| A B c D=A+BsC
|
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of paymenty
ad
Unbilled Trade payable| |"® :‘::H“ i
Particulars Lasc thas 1 1-Zyears | 1-2years | 2-3 Vears More:thiiy Total
vear 3 years
[ - - = =
iy duss— MSME - E 5.66 5.66
duses - Others . E g 2

- - @
= s st




Note 22 : Other current financial liabilities

Asat Asat
Particulal
i March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
Advance/deposits from parties 17.45 3378
Deferred Revenue 18.04 13.35
Earnest money deposit/Security Deposit 80.86 67.32
Due to Micro and small enterprises 337 3.37
Others 98.13 129.85
Total 217.85 247.57
Note 23 : Other current liabilities
Asat As at
Parti
articulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Statutory dues payable 961 7.20
Total 9.61 T.20
Note 24 : Short term provisions
& Asat As at
P
weslars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for employes benefits 2.08 2.09
Total 208 .09
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G0I1145734)

Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 25 : Revenue from operations

Paiticulars For the year ended For the year ended

March,2024 March,2023
Cooling charges 475.91 419.39
Bonded Warehouse Charges 56.71 77.66
Lease Rentfor Warehouse Charges 164,52 5.18
Handling Income-Bonded Warehouse 217 8.91
Handling income 84,11 56.75
Total 783.42 567.89
Note - 26 : Other income

h

Batitatitiivs For the year ended For the year ended

March,2024 March,2023
Interest on bank depaosits 13.65 9.71
Interest on security deposit given 0.47 0.43
Other interest income 2.38 2.62
Other non-operating income 2.55 31.88
Total 15.05 44.64

Note - 27 : Purchase of traded goods

For the year ended

£ For the year ended
Particulars
March,2024 March,2023
Stock-in-trade = =
Stores and spares - E
Total & =
Note - 28 : Changes in Inventories
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March,2024 March,2023
Opening stock
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares 0.02 0.02
0.02 0.02
Closing stock
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares 0.02 0.02
0.02 0.02
Total - -
Direct Expenses
Note - 29 : Direct expenses
Pl For the year ended For the year ended
March,2024 March,2023
Plant Operation & Maintenance 85.50 103.81
Handling expenses 7557 50.92
Store Management Charges 38.64 38.76
Power and fue| 220.50 260.83
Other Operating Expenses 0.79 1.52
Total 417.00 455.84
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Note - 30 : Employee benefits expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particul
SEticalpne March,2024 March,2023
Salary, allowances and other employee benefits 22.83 30.47
Contribution to CPF and EPS 2.08 2.59
Employees welfare and medical 4.83 2.43
Gratuity 1.26 1.09
Total 31.00 36.58
Note - 31 : Finance cost
particul For the year ended For the year ended
AR March,2024 March,2023
Interest Expense-Lease Liability (IND AS-116) 12.79 1332
Total 12.79 13.12

Note - 32 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

s March,2024 March,2023
Depreciation and amortisation 180.57 259.68
Total 180.57 259.68
Note - 33 : Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March,2024 March,2023

Printing and stationery expense 0.47 0.63
Travelling and conveyance 0.24 0.24
Rent office space/ Rai land and license fee 4.33 4.03
Office/ CA store Up keeping expenses 14.78 12.52
Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery 12.24 11.55

- Others 1.41 3.51
Security expenses 26.24 26.72
Office vehicle/ car hire charges 3.08 4.52
Postage, telephone and internet 0.42 0.15
Bank charges 0.05 0.01
Stamp duty charges 1.37 -
Legal and professional charges 5.16 5.18
Insurance premium 20.29 19.88
Advertisement 2.83 3.49
Statutory audit fee 1.08 1.08
Auction Service Charge 0.04 0.13
Property tax Haryana 163 163
Trade licence 1.08 1.07
Bad Debts Write Off 0.01 5.64
Miscellaneous expenses 1.20 2.73
Total 97.95 104.71

* Includes land given on lease by HSIIDC Limited, Rai for 30
a period of 99 years for which no lease premium has been
month for 66,400 sq. mtr. area for first 15 years and therea
2023-24 and lease money on land given on lease by H.P. Go

Lease Rules, 2013 for 99 years w.e.f. 01.08.2014.
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G01145734)
Notes to the financial statements

(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

34. Income taxes

34.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year -
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year - -
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit/(loss) as follows:

X Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Profit/(Loss) befare tax 63.16 (257.40)
Income tax credit calculated {at 25% *(Health Education Cess)4% =26% 16.42 (66.93)
(C.Y.)/25%% (Health Education Cess) 4%=26% (P.Y.) ’ ’
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit - 2
Income tax not recognised on account of set off of carry forward losses 16.42 (66.93)

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

The tax rate used for the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 25% plus cess of 4% on total income tax and Surcharge payable by

corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law for F.Y.2023-24

\\\i\§ o
A A
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Frash & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:US1909DL2006G0I145734)
Notes to the financial statements
(ANl amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

35, Deferrad tax balances

The following s the analysis of deferred tay assats/{liabilltizs) presented in the balance sheet:

Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferrad tax assets

Deferred tax assets over and above defarred tax liability not recognized*
Net deferred tax

As at
March 31, 2024

(412.12)
6,107 33

March 31, 2023

571173

As at

[373.78)
5,085.51

* The Company has carmied out the Deferred tax computation in accordance with the Ind AS 12 - Income taxes. Managament (s of the view that it Is not reasenable certain to realise deferred tax assets In the near
future. In the absence of the reasonable certainity of realisability of deferred tax assets, the deferred tax assets has been racognised only to the extent of deferred tax liability,

2023-2024
i cognised in R ised directly |
Particulars Opening balance n“qm“]d In profit o e i it [""h!r ecogn ;:ﬂ't o Closing balance
osse  comprehensive Income
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Eucessdeple:lallnnasnatInrmmelan.ﬁn, 1861, over (375.94) (38.24) R {414:18)
depreciation as per hooks
Loan to employess (0.40} - = (0.40)
Remeasurement of defined banefit plan 2.56 . (@.10) 2.6
Deferred tax liability (373.78) (38.24) {0.10) = (412.12}
Expenditure covered by section 438 of 1T, Act, 1961 (14.78) 0.58 = - [14.20)
Share lssue axpenses ® =
Adjustment for amertication of premium paid on leasehald land 192 - 192
Discounting of security deposit given 118 0.01 L16
Brought forward lasses and unabsorbed depreciation 6,097.22 21.23 611845
Deferred tax asset 6,085.51 21.82 - - 6,107.33
Deferred tax assets over and above deferred tax liability not recognized {5,711.73) 16.42 0.10 = (5,695.21
Net deferred tax = = = = &
2022-23
Recognised in profit or Recognised in ather Recognised directly in "
oo Closing bal

Particulars Dpening bal {3 o comiprahsrisive incone aguity osing balance
Defarrad tax (liabilities)/assets In relation to:
Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961, over 5

f 387,02 ; s 375.94
depreciation as per books eerig) e ¢ '
Loan to employees {0.40) - - (0.40)
Remeasurement of defined benafit plan 4.57 {0.01) 256
Deferred tax Hability (384.85) 11.08 (0.01} = {373.78)
Expenditure covered by section 428 of LT, Act, 1961 (15.32) 0.54 (14.78
Share lssue expenses = - =
Adjustment for amortisation of premium paid on leasehold land 192 . 1.92
Discounting of security deposit given 1.14 0.01 - 115
Broupht forward Iosses and unabsorbed depreciation 6,041.92 5530 5,087.22
Deferred tax asset 6,029.66 55.85 - - 5,085.51
Deferred tax assets overand above defierred tax liability not recognized {5,644.81) (66.93) 0.01 - (5,711.73)
Net deferred tax 3 E 2 - »
35.1 Unrecognised deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
Pa - Unused tax losses will For the year ended For the year ended

expire in March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deducilble temporary differences and unused tax losses including unabsorbed
depreciation for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are
attributable to the following:
- tax losses AfY 2015-16 AY 2022-23 - 13,14,36,910.00
- tan losses A/Y 2016-17 AfY 2023-24 24,10,10,£22.00 24,10,10,822.00
- tax fosses A/Y 2017-18 AfY 2024-25 11,21,28,169.00 11,231,732, 160.00
-Tax bosses AfY 2018-19 AfY 2025-26 8,40,48.743.00 #,40,48,743.00
- tay fosses AY 2019-70 AfY 2026-27 4,82,87 545 00 4,92 87 545.00
- tax losses AJY 2020-21 AfY 2021-28 3,54,50,417.00 3,54,50,417.00
- tax losses AJY 2021-22 AfY 2028-29 2,48,04,736.00 2,48,04,736.00
- tax losses AJY 2022-23 AfY 202930 1,34,12,619.00 1,34,12,619.00
- tax losses A/Y 2023-24 AfY 203031 2,10,57,273.00 -

Total
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G01145734)

Notes to the financlal statements
(All amountsare in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

36. Segment information
Services from which reportable segments derive their revenues

The Segment reporting disclosed by the Company in this section is presented in accordance with the disclosures requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating segment"

The company is dealing in renting of agri logistics facility at CA Store, Rai for storage of fresh fruits, Vegetables & related products etc. All the activities of the company are related to this business. Company
has operations in India only. Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM] for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses only an logistics of

agri logistics facility.

As at March 31, 2024, the operating segment of the Company are as under :

The Company is organised into two major operating divisions- EXIM and Domestic. The divisions are the basis on which the Company reports its primary segment information.Segment revenue and
expenses directly attributable to EXIM and Domestic segments are allocated to the two segments. Joint revenue and expenses have been allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets include all
operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of inventories, sundry debtors, cash and bank balances, loans & advances, other current assets and fixed assets net of provisions. Similarly,
segrment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of sundry creditars, other liabilities and provisions. Segment assets and liabilities do not, however, include provisions for taxes. loint

assets & liabilities have been allocated to segments on a reasonable basis.

As the operations of the Company are presently confined to the geographical territaries of India, there are no reportable geographical segments.

Segment revenue and results

The following is the analysis of the Company's revenue and results from operations by reportable segments..-

EXIM Domestic Un-Allocable Total

Particulars Year ended March Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024  March 31, 2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue
Segment Revenue
Cooling Charges 56.71 77.66 640.43 424.57 - 697.14 502.23
Handling Income 2.17 8.91 84.11 56.75 - - 86.28 65.66
Net Revenue from Operations 58.88 86.57 724.54 481.32 - - 783.42 567.89
Result
Segrment Result 4.25 (44.01) 52.65 (244.91) 56.90 (288.92)
Corporate expenses - - = - - - - E
Interast Expenses - - - - 1279 13.12 12.79 1312
Segment Result 4.25 (44.01) 52.65 (2a4.91) (12.79) (13.12) 44.11 (302.04)

Interest and other income
Income Taxes

E - > 19.05 44.64 19.05 44.64

63.16 (257.40)

Net Profit/(Loss)




Company’s material accounting policies described in Note 1. Segment profit/{Loss) represents the profit/(Loss} before tax

The matrial accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and

earned by each segment without allocation of other gains and losses, as well as finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
assessment of segment performance.
Revenue and expenses directly identifiable to the segments have been allocated to the relatively primary reportable segments.

Segment revenue and expenses which are not directly identifiable to the primary reportable segments have been disclosed under unallocable, which primarily includes interest and other income , Other
income includes Interest Income.

Segment assets and liabilities

EXIM Domestic Un-Allocable Total Segments

Particulars Yearended March  Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31, 2024 March 31,2023  March 31,2024  March 31,2023 March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Segment Assets 373.29 499,52 382030 2,711.31 - - 4,193.59 3,210.83
Unallocated Corporate Assets - - . - 166.68 1,123,12 166.68 1,123.12
Total Assets 373.29 499.52 3,820.30 2,711.31 166.68 1,123.12 4,360.27 4,333.95
Segment Liabities 18.34 41.35 377.08 392,92 : - 395.42 434.27
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities - - - - 3,964.85 3,899.68 3,964.85 3,899.68
Total Liabilities 18.34 41.35 377.08 392.92 3,964.85 3,899.68 4,360.27 4,333.95

For the purposes of monitaring segment performance and allocating resources between segments:
a) all assets are allocated to repartable segmenits other than investments and assets and

b} assets and liabilities which are not directly identifiable to the segments have been disclosed under unallocable

Other segment information

EXIM Domestic Un-Allocable Total Segments
Particulars Year ended March Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31, 2024 March 31, 2023  March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Capital Expenditure - - 1,299.09 313.61 = - 1,259.09 313.61
Depreciation and amortisation 13.58 39.58 166.99 220.10 - - 180.57 259.68

Non cash expenses other than depreciation and
amortisation i i

Note:
Capital Expenditure includes addition during the yearto property, plant and equipment & Other Intangible assets.

Revenue from major services

The following is the analysis of the company's revenue from its major services.

Particulars Year ended March Year ended
31,2024 March 31, 2023
Cooling Charges 697.14 502.23
Handling Income 86.28 65.66
Net Revenue from Operations 783.42 567.89

Information about major customers
Included in revenues arising from Storage of fresh fruits/vegetables/related products of Rs.783.42 Lakhs (2022-2023:Rs.567.89 Lakhs]. M/s Siddhi Enterprises-Rs,156.24 Lakhs has contributed 10% or mare
to the company's revenue during F.Y.2023-24 (P.Y. M/s R Rajeav Bros. & Co-Rs.57.09 Lakhs has contributed 10% or more to the company's revenue during F.Y.2022-23),

W™ &
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37A. Earning/(Loss) per share

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Bach and diluted earning/ (loss) per share of Rs.10 0.03 (0.11)
eac

There are no dilutive instruments issued by the company.

Basic and diluted earning/(Loss) per share

The earnings/(loss) and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share of
Rs.10 each are as follows.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to
(257.40)
owners of the Company 63.16
Earnings/(Loss) used in the calculation of basic
i (257.40)
earnings per share 63.16
Weighted average number of equity shares for
the purposes of basic earnings per share 2,286.82 2,250.06

37B. Impact of changes in material accounting policies
There are no changes in the material accounting policies which had impact on the amounts reported for earning/(loss) per share.

67




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G0I145734)
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in 2 lakhs unless otherwise stated)

38. Employee benefit plans

A. Defined Contribution Plans
a] Employers Contribution to Providert Fund
'CONCOR Empioyees CPF Trust' which invests the fund in permitted securities. The contribution to the fund fer the period is recognized as expense and is charged

Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at predetermined rates to a separate trust,
on cantributions te the members as specified by Government.

to Profit & Loss Account. The obligation of the company is limited te such fixed contributian, However, the trustis required to pay a minimurm rate of interest

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

DRuring the year the Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss -
148 2.00

Employers Contribution to Provident Fund

B, Defined Benefit Plans and Other Long Term Benefits
2} Contribution to Gratuity Funds - Employee's Gratuity Fund,

The Company has a defined benefit Eratuity plan, which is regulated as the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation,

per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The scheme is funded, The liability for

b) Leave Encashment/ Compensated Absence
The company has a defined benefit leave encashment plan for its employees. Under this plan,
leave encashment have been provided on the basisof actuarial valuation.

they are entitied to encashment of earned leaves and medical leaves subject to certain limits and other conditions specified for the same. The liabilities towards

¢ Leave Travel Concession,

The Company prevides LTC facilities to its s ployees, whichis s iin accordance with the policy framed in this regard, The liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation,

These plans typically expose the company to actuarial risk such as: longevity risk and salary risk,
The presenet value of the defined benefit plan fiability |5 calculated by refernce to the best estimate of the mortality of pian participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the lifs's expectancy of the plan

& Ri
Longevity Risk particlpants will increase the plan's liability,

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salarias of plan participants, As such, an increase in the salary of the plan particiapants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary Risk
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An actuarial valuation was carried out in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit

plans and other long term benefits based o the following assumptions.

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars
Employeas
Leave Trave! 3 Employees Leave Travel -
i i h t Sick le. Medi
Grmtu;tv Leave Encashment Sick leave kb Medical Gratuity Fund Leave Encashmen ck leave Concession edical
Ln
Discount rate (par annum) 7.23% 7.23% 7.23% 7.23% 7.23% 7.519% 7.51% 7.51% 7.51% 7.51%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 10.00% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 10,00% 5.50%
|Rate of return on plan assets NA NA NA NA NA NA NA N# NA A
1
Martality IAL:AU;‘GUTZ 100% of |ALM 20124 100% of IALM 20124 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 100% of |ALM | 1009 of IALMV
14 14 14 2012-14 2012-14 2012-14 2012-14 2012-14 2012-14 2012-14
Estimates of future salary increases considerad in actuarial valuation take account of infiation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market,
Changes In present value of obligations
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Employees
Ti | Leave Travel
Gratuity | Leave Encashment Sick leave u_!a“ r.avel Medical Emp. i Leave Encashment Sick leave b ZBVE Medical
Fund Concessicn Gratuity Fund Concession
ui
Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year 7.61 3.78 245 0.87 337 6.48 437 2.22 0.75 2.16
Interest cost 057 0.z8 0.19 0.06 D25 0.47 0.32 015 0.06 Dl
Current service cast 0.70 0.70 .16 0.28 1.16 0.62 0.60 0.14 0.32 1.07
Benefits paid - (1.25) - (0.11) (1.34) - (2.07) - (0.45) (0.85)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations* 040 1.03 (0.34) (0.53) 0.23 0.04 0.56 [0.07) 0.19 0.84
Effect of change in financial assumptions (gains)/ losses 0.27 0.13 0.04 - - (2.20) (o.12} {0.03) - ~
Effect of experience adj nts (gains)/ losses 013 0.90 (0.37) - - 0.249 0.68 (0.03) - -
Present value of obligation as at the year end 9.28 4.54 2.46 0.47 3.67 7.61 3.78 2.45 0.87 3.37
* Other Comprehensive Income of Rs.(0.40) Lakhs pertains to remeastrements of the defined benefit plan.
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit abl gation and fair value of assets
Particulars As at March 31, 202a As at March 31, 2023
Employees
T | ! L T f
Gratuity | Leave Encashment Sick leave e '?VE Medical Emp_ YRR Leave Encashment Sick leave RANG limve Madieal
Concession Gratuity Fund Concession
Fund
Present value of obligation as at the year end 9.28 4.54 2.45 0.47 3.67 7.51 3.78 245 D.87 3.37
Fair value of plan assets as at the year end - = - - - = < = = i
Surplus/ (Deficit) 9.28 4.54 246 0.47 3.67 7.61 3.78 245 0.87 3.37
Unfunded net asset/ (liability) recognised In balance sheet 5.28 4.54 245 0.47 3,67 7.61 3.78 245 0.87 3.37
SR—
Classified as Long Term 9.02 442 214 0.29 247 7.39 367 213 0.54 2.26
Classified as Short Term 0.26 0.12 0.32 0.18 1.20 0.22 0.11 0.32 0.33 1:14
Total 9.28 4.54 2.46 0.47 3.67 7.61 3.78 2.45 0.87 3.37 I

=
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Expenses din the st it of profit & loss
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Emplayees Leave Encashment Leave Trave| Employess Leave Encashment Leave Trave|
Gratulty e Sick leave ** o Medical ** Gratuity Fund -3 Sick leave ** = Medical *=
Cancession Concession

Fund * #
Current service cost 0.70 0.70 0.16 0.28 116 0.62 0.60 0.14 0.32 107
Interest cost 057 0.28 0.19 0.06 0.25 0.47 0.32 0.16 0.06 0.16
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss d during the year
Effect of change in financial assumptions (gains)/ losses - 0.13 0.04 - - = {0.12} (0.03) -
Effect of experience adjustments (gains)/ losses - 0.80 {0.38) (0.63) 0.23 - 0.68 (0.03) 0.19 0.84
Total expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 1.27 2.01 0.01 (D.29) 1.54 1.09 1.48 0.24 0.57 2.07 |

* Included in "Gratuity" In note no, 30 - Employes benefit expenses
** Included in "Salary, Allowances & Other Employee Benefits”

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
occurring at the end of the reparting period, while helding a

the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase,
Il other assumptions constant.

in note no. 30 - Employes benefit expenses

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined hased on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Emnployees Employess
! Leave Trave|
Gratuity | Leave Encashrment Sick leave Hhmye T|I'ave Medical Gratuity Fund | Leave Ericashment Sick leave o T Medical
Fund * Concession * 4 Concession
un

Discount rate is 100 basis points higher (0.92) (0.48) (0.13) - - (0.79) (0.46) (0.13) - -
Discount rate is 100 basis points fower 1.05 0.52 0.15 - - 0.91 0.55 0.15 - -
Expected salary growth increases by 1% 1.06 0.51 0.14 0.48 3.68 082 0.54 0.15 0.90 3.37
Expected salary growth decreases by 1% 0.94 0.46 (0.13) (0.46) (3.67) (0.81) (0.47) (0,14} (0.84) (3.36)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of
Furthermiore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present
defined benefit abligation liability recognised in the balance sheet,

the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as same of the assumptions may be correlated.
value of the defined benefit chligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reparting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Wl - =
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39. Financial Instruments

(1) Capital management

The company reviews the capital structure as and when need arises. As part of this review, the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital are considered, Based on this, the Company determines the amount of capital required for annual and long-term operating plans. The funding
requirements are met through equity and short term borrowings. The Company monitors the tapital structure on the basis of Net debt to equity ratio
and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company, The company isn't subject to any externally imposed capital requirements,

The Company is relying on the support of its holding company for meeting the long-term and short-term goals obligations. Further, the Company has
already evaluated various business prospects based on which Management is of the view that there is no doubt about the viability of the Company and

the Company will be in a good condition in the coming years without doubting its ability to continue as a going concern.

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other reseryes attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company.

39.1(l) Gearing ratio

The Company has no outstanding debt as at the end of reporting period. Accordingly, the Company has nil gearing ratio as at March 31, 2024 and March
31, 2023 respectively.

(ii) Categories of financial instruments

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 93.09 391.47
Trade receivables 455.97 270.56
Loans 0.51 0.13
Other Financial assets 53.97 54.29
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 5.66 5.66
Borrowings = -
Other financial liabilities 217.85 247,57

(iii) Financial risk management objectives

not arises in respect of the following:
a) The company is not subject to transactions denominated in foreign currencies;
b} The company daes not hold any investments.

4l



{iv) Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that @ counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company, The Company has
limited exposure to the credit risk owing to the balance of trade receivable as explained in nate 8. To Tackle the credit default the company has adopted

a policy of releasing the material/services against payment. The Company has filed the legal cases in respect of some of the customers and expects a
favourable outcome in all of the legal cases.

{v)Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and continuously monitaring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2024:

Particulars Carrying Due in Due in Due in Due in Due after Total contracted
amount Istyear  2nd year 3rd year 4th & 5th 5th year cash flows
— VEar

Financial Liabilities
Borrpwings and interest there - - - 5
Trade payables 5.66 5.66 - - -

% 5.66

Other financial liabilities 217.85 217.85 = = - - 217.85

The table below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities ineluding estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2023;

Particulars Carrying Due in Due in Duein Duein Due after Total contracted
amount  Istyear  2nd year 3rd year 4th & 5th Sth year cash flows

—year

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings and interest there - - - - - - -

Trade payables 5.66 5.66 - - - = 5.66

Other financial liabilities 247,57 247.57 = - - - 247.57

The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earnied on those
assets,

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial assets including estimated interest receipts as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Carrying upto 1 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-5 year Maore than 5 Total Contracted
amount year ear Cash flows
Trade receivables 455,97 455.97 - - - - 455.97
Loans
Current assets D.13 0.13 = — - - 0.13
Non-current assets 0.38 . 0.12 012 0.14 0.38
Other financial assets
Current assets 6.21 6.21 - - z . 6.21
Non-current assets 47.76 = : - = 54.78 54.78 |

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial assats including estimated interest receipts as at 31 March 2023

Particulars Carrying upto 1 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-5 year More than 5
amount year year
Trade receivables 270.56 270,56 - - - ~
Loans
Current assets 0,12 D.12 - - - -
Non-current assets 0.01 = 0.0 - - -
Other financial assets
Current assets 7.00 7.00 = “ - -
Non-current assets 47.29 - - - - 54.78

{vi) Fair value measurements

No financial assets and financial liabilities of the company are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

(vii) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fairvalue Carrying Carrying
Particulars hierarchy  amount Fair value amount Fair value
Financial assets*
Trade receivables Level 2 455.97 455,97 270.56 270.56
Loans
Current assets Level 2 0.13 0.13 0.12 0.12
Non-current assets Level 2 0.38 0.38 0.01 0.01
Other financial assets
Current assets Leve| 2 6.21 621 2.00 7.00
Non-current assets Level 2 47.76 47.76 47.28 47.29
Financial Liabilities*
Borrowings including Level 2 - . - =
interest accrued
Trade payables Level 2 5.66 5.66 5.66 5.66
Other financial liabilities Level 2 217.85 217.85 247.57 247.57

4ir values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 categories above have been determined in accordance with generally
pted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the mast significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of

Is no significant change in the fair value of these financial assets and financial liabilities, therefore fair value is equal to its carrying value,
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40.Lease arrangements
a)  Asalessee:-

Leasing arrangements
The Company has entered into operating leases arrangements for Land with lease terms,

For the Year Ended March 31, 2024

[Particulars Land
Depreciation Charged 8.85
Interest expense on Lease Liabilities 12.79|

Expense related to short term leases
Expense related to low value leases

Expense related to variable lease payments

Income from Sub-leasing right-of use assets

Total Cash outflow for leases 14.00
Addition to Right of Use Assets

Gains or Losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period 136.06

For the Year Ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Land|
Depreciation Charged 8.85
Interest expense on Lease Liabilities 13.12

Expense related to short term leases
Expense related to low value leases

Expense related to variable lease payments

Income from Sub-leasing right-of use assets

Total Cash outflow for leases 11.95
Addition to Right of Use Assets 89.53
Gains or Losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions 2
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period 144.91

The table below provided details un-discounted contractual maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at 31st

March,2024
Total
i Due in ™ “IDue in 4th h
Particulars Earr\:ntg sty gue s I‘?ue 3 thy gue wisrh Contracted
moun 1" Year ear ear to 57 Year |Year Cash flows
Lease Liabilities 151.49 18.30 18.41 18.41 36.81 910.88] 1002.81

The table below provided details un-discounted contractual maturity analysis of lease liabilities ac at 31st

March,2023
Carrying  |Due  in|pue in 2"Due in 3|Due in 4th Due after 5*f O
Particulars s th Contracted
Amount 1% Year |year Year to 57 Year |Year
Cash flows
Lease Liabilities 162.96 18.10| 18.30 18.41 36.81 929.28' 1020.90

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and Jease liabilities.

Applied the exemption not to recognize right-to-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term.

The leases which are not yet commenced are NIL. 5




b)

As a Lessor:-

The Company has given warehouses on cancella ble operating leases,

Payments recognised as an income

For year ended March 31st 2024

Particulars

Warehouse

Minimum lease payments recognised

164.52

Sub-lease recoveries

For year ended March 31st 2023

Particulars

Warehouse

Minimum lease payments recognised

518

Sub-lease recoveries

Operating Leases

For year ended March 31st 2024

Particulars Warehouse
Lease Payment to be received

1st Year 175.17
2nd Year 175.17
3rd Year 175.17
4th Year 179.41
5th Year 192.69
After 5 Years 724.12

For year ended March 31st 2023

Particulars Warehouse
Lease Payment to be received

1st Year 17517
2nd Year 17517
3rd Year 175.17
4th Year 175.17
5th Year 179.41
After 5 Years 916.81
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41. Statement of Transactions with related parties

Holding Company
Container Corporation of India Limited

Part Time Directors
Sh. Sanjay Swarup, Chairman (w.e.f. 01.10.2023)
Sh. Mohammad Azar Shams, Director
Sh. Sharad Verma, Director (w.e.f. 19.10.2023)
Smt Ritu Narang, Director
Sh. V Kalyana Rama, Ex-Chairman (Ceased to be Chairman w.e.f. 30.09.2023)
Sh. Sanjay Swarup, Director (Ceased to be Director w.e.f. 30.09.2023)

Key Management Personnel
Sh. Alek Badkul, CEO (w.e.f. 11.10.2023)
Sh. Santosh Sinha, Ex-CEQ [Ceased w.e.f. 10.10.2023)
Sh. Ravindra Bhat, CFO
Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary

The following table summarizes related-party transactions and balances with the holding company M/s Container Corporation
of India Ltd for the year ended and as on reporting date:

Transactions during the year

For the year ended  For the year ended
P,

Rt March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity Infusion - 821.00

41.1 Compensation of key management personnel:
Compensation to Key Management Perscnnel (i.e. CEO, Company Secretary & CFO} is paid by the holding company .
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42. Analytical Ratios

Particulars 2023-24| 2022-23 Varlance;: Remarks
a) Current Ratio( in times) 2.40 2.61 -8.05%
b) Debt-Equity Ratio( in times) NA NA
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio( in times) NA NA
On account of profit during the
(d) Return on Equity Ratio(in %) 0.27% -1.13% 123.89%|year as compared to loss during
Previous Financial year,
&) Inventory turnover ratio( in times) NA NA
f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio( in times) 1.72 2.10 18.10%
) Trade payables turnover ratio{ in times) NA NA
On account of decrease in
(h) Net capital turnover ratio ( in times) 2.68 0.42| 538.10%|Orkine capital and eRkaes:
turnover as compared to previous
year.
On account of profit during the
(i) Net profit ratio( in %) 8.01%| -45.33% 117.67%|year as compared to loss during
Previous Financial year.
On account of profit during the
(i) Return on Capital employed( in %) 1.00% -7.00%|  114.29%|year as compared to loss during
Previous Financial year.
k) Return on investment (in %) NA NA
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43, Contingent labilities and contingent assets

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
&, Bank Guarantees not provided for 2.00 2.00

b. Carrots wers stored by M/s GAPL in FHEL's facility, M/s GAPL disputed the rental and requested for arbitration. FHEL approached arbitrater to recover rental charge and handiing charge of
Rs.BY,16,956/- and M/s GAPL approactied Arbitrator for claim of Rs.4,58,84,497/- on quality issues. Arhitrator awarded Rs.B7,16,956/- in favour of FHEL and Rs.80,44 961/~ in favour of M/s GAPL
Both approached Hon'ble High Courtand filed appeal against the Arbitrator award. The case Is pending in High Court. Delhi.

c. A Claim of #s.53,46,837/- against FHEL has besn filed by the Growers of Shimla area which is under arbitration proceeding. A cotinter claim of R5.1,68,98,043/- has alse been filed by the
Company.

d. M/s Pulkit Industries have Invoked arbitration clause for 2 tenders: The claim amount is Rs. 18,81 lakhs plus interest. The arbitration has awarded in favour of M/s Pulkit industries which has been

challenged by FHEL and the mattar is pending with Patiala House Court,

2. M/s 1. Papyrus Packaging Pvt. Ltd, has filed an execution pelition as per the arbitration award of Rs.8,78,007/-. As per the directions of the court an amount of R5:4,21,403/- has been depositied
with the Court Additiona! Dictriet Judge - District Court - Sonipat, FHEL has challenged the award and alsa filed the axecution petition at Sanipat Court,

Tl HSIIDC vide its letter dated 26.09.2018 has communicated that they have revised the monthly lease rental from Rs.1.50 per sq. mtr per manth to Re.15/- par Sq. mtr per manth with annual
increase of 10% every year w.e.f 26.03.2018, However, HSIIDC has been requested to maintain the rental rate @R5 1.50 per 50. mtr per month till FHEL starts earning prafit, Thus, in case of any
revision of rental rats 10 Rs.15/- per sg mtr per month with annual increase of 10% svery year w.e.f. 26.03.2018, there may arrive liability of Rs.924.10 Lakhs.

B} Mr. Surfeet Singh Rana grop, M/s Madadh Paultry Farm have filad a recovery suit against FHEL Claiming an amount of fs, 19,25,000/- plus Interest € 18% which has been challenged by FHEL and

the matter is pending with District Cowrt, Sonipat.

h} Madadh Poultry farm Cfe Sushil Jindal have filed a recovery suit against FHEL Claiming an amount of Rs.18.40,000/- plus interest @ 18% which has been challenged by FHEL and the mattar is
pending with District Court, Sonipat

1) M/s SRF International & M/s SFA Enterprises had filed & recover suit against FHEL

matter is pending with High Court, New Dealhl.

claiming an amount of Rs.2,5041,302/- plus Interest @ 24% , which has been challenged by FHEL and the

I Na ingent assets and conti gains are le to the company,
44, Details of expenditure and gsin foregn W
For
For the Year ended “dedt:;:;i;l
.
March 31, 2024 2023

o

Expendi in foreign
Expenditure in foreign exchange

45. The company has a positive net warth since 2019-20 dus ta further investment in equity capital by holding campany, Alsa the management of the comparny has given detailed plan for future

working of company and there is no doubt on Going Concern of the company affairs and hence no impairment has been done by the Company and also there is no assat on which Impairment is
required as per Indian Accounting Standard 36,

45, Additional infi i quired as per schedule |1l of panies Act 2013 regarding purchase, sale and stock of main tems:
{Consumed & Cost &
it i !
em Opening Purchaged Sold orice/NRV difference Closing
{No.) /¥ 10,508 - - - 10,508
" 2 Qty (No.) B/Y 10,508 - = - 10,508
i*e
PTG sy Amount {in Rs.] /Y 2,220 - 2,220
Amount (in Rs.) P/Y 2,220 - - - 2,220
47. Auditers Remuneration
Barlicitars For the Year ended March For the Year ended
31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory audit 1.08 1.08
Others 0.54 052
1.62 L.60




48. The Particulars of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under Micro, Small and Medium Enterp Devel Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act at the year end. 5.03 2.02

Note: The above information has been disclosed In raspact of parties which have been identified on the basis of the information avallable with the Company,

49. Pending issuance of Notification u/s 441A of Companles Act, 1956 and as no provisians an the matter are stated in the companies act, 2013, no provision has bean made towarde Cess an

turnover.
50. The Impact of pay revision in raspact of security expenses ete, will be accounted for on receipt of claims.

51. Insurance Claims of Rs. 5.54 lakhs for transit accident of apple inaded trucks |s pending with National insurance Company.

52. During the year, provision for current tax (s not made 35 the Company has brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation amounting to 58.12 crore upto A/Y 2023-24 {as at March 31,
2023: Rs.69.15 crore upto A/Y 2022-23) in iance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

53, During the year the Company had no ployee drawing rem equal to or more than the limits prescribed under the Campanies Act, 2013 and the rules made there undsr,

54 Reiationship with Struck off Companies:-The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companias Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,
1956,

55, No-equity Infusion during the FY 2023-24 (P.Y. On 15th June,2022 & 16th March,2023, FHEL had issued and allotted 55,60,000 & 26,50,000 Equity Shares respectively of Rs.10/- sach to
CONCOR on Right basis towards partial funding of Re-sngineering plan of FHEL),

56, The face value/nominal value of sich equity share is Rs.10/-

57. The depraciation on property, plant and equipment is charged on straight-line method as rer the useful life prescritied In Schedule || of the Companies Act 2013

58. Unless otherwise stated, the figures are in Lakhs

59. Previous year figures have been reclassified) grouped whenaver v to current year's presentation.

For M.L. Kejriwal & Co.

S
Chartered Accountant X 94 } § 0
FAN No GOSN I - m ) = T — |
Sanjay Swarup Maha Alak Badkul
CA Sickiharth al Chatrman Director 'l'
Partner
M.No 552001
UDIN No: 2 4 5,575 A’ ‘lj 0 e\dt
Date:14-05-2024 Suman lam Ravind
Piace: New Delhi Company Secretary Chiaf anam:{al
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C'A(_ M.L. KEJRIWAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

N N DITOR’ P

To the Members of
FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OFFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FRESH & HEALTHY
ENTERPRISES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at 31%March 2024, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory informationon that date annexed thereto
(hereinafter referred to as ‘Ind AS Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the

Companies (Indian accounting standard) Rule 2015 as amended ("IND AS") and the
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31%March 2024 and its financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities

under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the

our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters:

1. Note no 8(c) to the financial statement in respect of sundry debtors, there is
uncertainty related to the outcome of the lawsuit filed against various sundry
debtors. The company has taken apprapriate action in this respect.

Office : 310, Ansal Majestic Tower, Behind RN ema, Vikas Puri, New Delhi-110018, India

Tele/Fax : 011-45555371, E-mail : accounts@mlkejriwal.com Website: www.mlkejriwal.com
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2. Note no 8(a) to the financial statement, includes amount recoverable from
Customer i) M/s Elements Exports Rs.10,92,656/- and (ii)) M/s SRC Overseas
Rs.70,037/- which are outstanding for more than 1 year. No recovery suit
has been filed by company against them.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Based on the circumstances and facts of the company and the audit, we have
determined that there are no key matters to communicate in our audit report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.




AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THEFINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and the financial statements represent

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged
matters, the planned scope and t




findings,including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as
amended, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure -A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose
of our audit;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been

kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books;

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the cash flow statement and statement of

change in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

(e) As per the notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, section 164(2) of the Act
regarding the disqualifications of Directors is not applicable to the
Company, since it is a Government Company.

(f) With respect to adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure -B”.

(g) As per the notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015
issued by Ministry of Corporate
regarding the Managerial RgfRdf
Company, since it is a Gover




(h)

vi.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s)
Rules,2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in itsfinancial statement. (Refer note no 8c and 43 to
theFinancial Statement).

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management of the Company have represented to us that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries or
jointly controlled entities to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such
subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management of the Company have represented to us that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company or any of such subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities from
any person or entity, including foreign entity (“"Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.,

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year.
Therefore, reporting in this regard is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting softwa Prime Edit Log Gold)for maintaining
its books of accounts whj 8ature of recording audit trail (edit




log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.The audit trail has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

(i) As required by section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013, we give in
"Annexure -C"”, a statement on the matters specified in the direction
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, and in our
opinion, no action is required to be taken thereon and there is no impact
on accounts and financial position of the company.

For M.L. Kejriwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No.-0082 34

Membership no: 552001

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14-05-2024

UDIN No.: - 24552001BKGDCC1673
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to paragraph-1 under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Fresh & Healthy
Enterprises Limited of even date)

I. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets:

(a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
includingquantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets.

(b)  The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The company does not hold any immovable assets in its name.

(d)  The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

II. (a) Inventories have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the
nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed during such
verification.

(b) The company has not availed any working capital limits from the banks or
financial institutions.

III. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

IV. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
not given any loans, made investments, given guarantee or securities during

the year under the provisiong@ierstion 185 and 186, therefore provision of
this clause is not applicablg Y.




VI.

VII.

VIII.

le

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of directives issued by Reserve bank of India and hence provisions
of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of the Act and rules
framed thereunder with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are
not applicable to the company.

The company Is not required to maintainthe cost records prescribed by the
central government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act.

a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and
service tax wealth tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no
undisputed outstanding statutory dues as at the year-end for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Companythere are no material dues
of wealth tax, duty of customs, income tax, Sales Tax, service Tax, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no
transactions which have not recorded in the books of account, have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Therefore, provisions of clause
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any
lender. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order are not applicable
to the company.

(b) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution orgovernment or any government authority.,

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are
no outstanding term loans atthe beginning of the year and hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of financial statements of the company, funds
have notbeen raised on short-termbasis. Hence, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the order is not applicable.

(e)The company has not taken any funds from any entities or person on

account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.




XI.

XII.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

a) The company has not raised any money by way of Initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.Therefore,
the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

a) No fraud has been noticed or reported on or by the company during the
year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) As per the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower
complaints have been received by the company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly paragraph 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

All transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the year under audit have been
considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directorsor
persons connected with its director during the year.

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in
the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the representations given by the management, the
company has no CIC as part of the Group.




XVII.

XVIII.

XIX.

XX.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly this clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of

one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

a) The Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso
to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the company.

The company is having only standalone financial statements, therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For M.L. Kejriwal & Co,
Chartered Accountants

CA Siddha
(Partner)

Membership no: 552001

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14-05-2024

UDIN No.: - 24552001BKGDCC1673
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to Paragraph - 2(f) under the “Report on other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the members of Fresh &
Healthy Enterprises Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31% March 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidencesfr
provide a basis for our audit -d{?’
system over financial reporting




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1)  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

£3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M.L. Kejriwal & Co.

Membership no: 552001

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14-05-2024

UDIN No.: -24552001BKGDCC1673
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Annexure “"C” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to paragraph-2(i) under the 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Fresh &
Healthy Enterprises Limited of even date)

system in place to process

all the accounting
transactions through IT
system? If yes, the

implications of processing
of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts
along with the financial
implications, if any, may
be stated.

place to process all the
accounting transactions through
IT system. The operational
entries of the company like
revenue, customer ledger
accounts etc., have been
recorded in Tally Prime Edit Log
Gold. The company accounts

and payments are maintained in |

Tally Prime Edit Log Gold. The
income  generated  through
Commercial software is
transferred to accounting
software  through  separate
entries at monthly intervals.
However, the company has
adequate internal control and
audit systems to verify
correctness of the entries
collated and posted in Tally
Prime Edit Log Gold.

Based on the audit procedure
carried out and as per the
information and explanations
given to wus, no accounting
transactions have been
processed/carried outside the IT
system. Accordingly, there are
no implications on the integrity
of the accounts.

'S. | Direction u/s 143(5) of | Auditor’'s reply on action | Impact on
No. the Companies Act, taken on the directions financial
2013 statement
1 | Whether the Company has | The company has system in | Nil




2 | Whether there is any
restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of
waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest  etc.
made by a lender to
thecompany due to the
company’'s  inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the
financial impact may be
stated. Whether  such
cases are properly
accounted for? (In case,
lender is a Government
Company, then his
direction is also applicable
for statutory auditor of
lender company).

According to the information
and explanation given to us and
based on our examination of
records of the company, there
has been no restructuring of an

existing loan or cases of waiver
/ write off debts / loans /
interest etc. made by a lender
to the company due to the
company'’s inability to repay the
loan. Further, no loan has been
availed during the FY 2023-24.

Nil

3 | Whether
(grants/subsidy
received/receivable for
specific  schemes from
Central/State Government
or its agencies were
properly accounted
for/utilized as per its term
'and conditions? List the
cases of deviation.

funds
etc.)

Based on the information and
explanation given to us, the
company has not received
(grant/subsidy etc.) towards
any specific scheme from
Central/ State government or its
agencies by the company during
the financial year 2023-24,

Nil

For M.L. Kejriwal & Co.
Chartered Accoupta

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14-05-2024
UDIN No.: -24552001BKGDCC1673

92




o

TeIeY® A@Tudlan &1 drafay

\:1’ ;; ' C/o WA & fia® ok weTeran udtars
,‘_\1,#@ &’ Office of the Director General of Audit
""‘* 2 Railway Commercial, New Delhi
— C/o Comptroller and Auditor General of India
Gl b e Lo 4, G IUTEATg T, 9% AR 4. Deen Dayal ( Ipadhyvaya Marg, New Delhi-110002
Dedicated to Truth in =..:‘.::: Imerest
TE1/31 5. /3R G1/AA-FHEL/83-34 /2024-25/.98. f&Ai®:97.08.2024
qq1 g,
Tay e,
Y U8 el sexumsold fofies,
HIBR Ha, T -3,
RIS,
75 feweft - 110076.
Hgley,

fawy: 31 AT 2024 $) FATE T4 F 70 ey T8 eI gexvgew fafies & fa=ig
faravon ur St rffraw 2013 B URT 143 (6)(b) F aTd WRA & aa®
T4 HETaaTuIes ®1 fewfort |

T ThY US g SRUEe ffies & 31 A 2024 & AT 9y & faxiig
fqaRol @ Hut  fAfgH 2013 BT URT 143 (6) (b) P AT YRd & IS T
eramETuRierds ! fewfomt spifid R @ E |

PUI $H U B! Jaud! igd Uil o1 urad! Hefl Sg|

oy gUius

hd

HeIfewre (¥6a arftreas)

93



COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 14 May 2024.

|, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES
LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers
of the Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant
matters under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my
view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the
related audit report:

A. Comments on Financial Position

Assets - (1) Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment - Note 2- Z 3662.28 lakh

Plant and Machinery- Z 888.46 lakh

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

IV Expenses -

(f) Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 32) - 180.57 lakhs

The ‘Plant and Machinery’ included “Office Equipment” having gross value of  22.47
lakh as on 31/3/2023 and remaining ‘Net Block’ of Z 8.53 lakh as on 31/3/2024. The Company
had provided depreciation on ‘Office Equipment’ considering their useful of 15 years instead of
5 years as provided in Part-C of the Schedule-Il of the Companies Act, 2023.
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Accordingly, the ‘Office Equipment’ included in ‘Plant and Machinery’ should have been fully
depreciated as on 31/3/2024 as their life had exceeded five years.

This had resulted into overstatement of Plant and Machinery and ‘Profit after Tax’ by 2
8.53 lakh as well as understatement of ‘Depreciation and Amortisation expenses’ by the same

amount.
For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India
Dr. Ni oswami
Place: New Delhi Director Gen of Audit
Dated:>.08.2024 Railway Commerefal, New Delhi
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FORM NO. MGT-11 : Proxy Form
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014)

CIN : U51909DL2006G0O1145734

Name of the Company: Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of
CONCOR)

Registered Office : CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathura
Road, New Delhi — 110076.

Name of the member(s):
Registered address:
Email Id:

Folio No./ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/ we, being the member(s) of .......... Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name:

Address:

Email Id:

Signature.................... or failing him/her
2. Name:

Address:

Email Id:

Signature.................... or failing him/her
3. Name:

Address:

Email Id:

Signature.................... or failing him/her

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 19" Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held on the 24" day of September,
2024 at 04:00 P.M at Conference Hall, CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathura Road, New Delhi — 110076 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below :

S. No. Resolution(s) Option*
(please mention no. of
shares)
For Against
1 Adoption of Financial Statements for the year ended as on 31, March, 2024 and report of

Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon (Ordinary resolution)

2 Appointment of Shri Sanjay Swarup as Chairman (Ordinary resolution)
3 To take note of the appointment M/s. M.L. Kejriwal & Co., Statutory Auditors, New Delhi
and authorization for their remuneration (Ordinary resolution)
4 Appointment of Sh. Sharad Verma as Part-time Non-Executive Director
Signed this.....day of.................. 2024
Affix Revenue
Signature of shareholder Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Notes: 1.This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.
2. For the details of Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of 19" Annual General Meeting.
*3. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the column blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem
appropriate.
4. Please complete all details including details of member(s) before submission.

96



FORM NO. MGT-7

[Pursuant to sub-Section(1) of section 92 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and sub-rule (1) of
rule 11of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Form language  (® English (O Hindi
Refer the instruction kit for filing the form.

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
(i) * Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the company

Global Location Number (GLN) of the company
* Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the company

(i) (a) Name of the company

(b) Registered office address

Companies)

U51909DL2006GOI1145734

DRAFT

Annual Return
(other than OPCs and Small

Pre-fill

AAACF9616)J

FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRIE

CONCOR BHAWANC-3 MATHURA ROAD
OPP APOLLO HOSPITAL

NEW DELHI-76

Delhi

000000

(c) *e-mail ID of the company

(d) *Telephone number with STD code

(e) Website

sumanlata@concorindia.com

01141222500

www.concorindia.com

(iii)

(iv)

Date of Incorporation

01/02/2006

Type of the Company

Category of the Company

Sub-category of the Company

Public Company

Company limited by shares

Union Government Company

(v) Whether company is having share capital ® Yes

(vi) “Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchange(s) O Yes

(b) CIN of the Registrar and Transfer Agent

O No
® No

Pre-fill

Name of the Registrar and Transfer Agent
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Registered office address of the Registrar and Transfer Agents

(vii) *Financial year From date

01/04/2023

(viii) *Whether Annual general meeting (AGM) held

(a) If yes, date of AGM

(b) Due date of AGM

(DD/MM/YYYY) To date

O Yes

30/09/2024

(c) Whether any extension for AGM granted

O Yes

31/03/2024

O No

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

*Number of business activities

—_—

® No

(DD/MM/YYYY)

S.No [Main Description of Main Activity group [Business |Description of Business Activity % of turnover
Activity Activity of the
group code Code company
1 H Transport and storage H6 Warehousing and storage 89

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
(INCLUDING JOINT VENTURES)

*No. of Companies for which information is to be given

—_

Pre-fill All

S.No Name of the company CIN/FCRN Holding/ Subsidiary/Associate/ % of shares held
Joint Venture
1 CONTAINER CORPORATION OFff L63011DL1988G0I030915 Holding 100

IV. SHARE CAPITAL, DEBENTURES AND OTHER SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

(i) *SHARE CAPITAL
(a) Equity share capital

Total number of equity shares
250,000,000 |228,682,048 |228682,048 228,682,048
;‘ff;é :‘g)‘o“”t ofequity shares (in |5 500.000,000 |2,286,820480 |2,286,820,480  |2.286,820.480

Number of classes
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Number of equity shares 250,000,000 228,682,048 228,682,048 228,682,048
Nominal value per share (in rupees) 10 10 10 10
Total amount of equity shares (in rupees) 2,500,000,000 |2,286,820,480 |2,286,820,480 |2,286,820,480

(b) Preference share capital

Total number of preference shares

Total amount of preference shares
(in rupees)

Number of classes

Number of preference shares

Nominal value per share (in rupees)

Total amount of preference shares (in rupees)

(c) Unclassified share capital

Total amount of unclassified shares

(d) Break-up of paid-up share capital

Equity shares Physical | DEMAT Total
At the beginning of the year
228,682,04¢ 228682048 (2,286,820,4|2,286,820,

Increase during the year 0 0 0 0
i. Pubic Issues

0 0 0 0
ii. Rights issue

0 0 0 0
iii. Bonus issue

0 0 0 0
iv. Private Placement/ Preferential allotment

0 0 0 0
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v. ESOPs

Preference shares

0 0 0 0
vi. Sweat equity shares allotted

0 0 0 0
vii. Conversion of Preference share 0 0 0 0
viii. Conversion of Debentures

0 0 0 0
ix. GDRs/ADRs 0 0 0 0
x. Others, specify
Decrease during the year 0 0 0 0
i. Buy-back of shares

0 0 0 0
ii. Shares forfeited

0 0 0 0
iii. Reduction of share capital

0 0 0 0
iv. Others, specify
At the end of the year

228,682,04¢ 228682048 |2,286,820,4(2,286,820,

At the beginning of the year

0 0 0 0
Increase during the year

0 0 0 0
i. Issues of shares

0 0 0 0
ii. Re-issue of forfeited shares

0 0 0 0
iii. Others, specify
Decrease during the year 0 0 0 0
i. Redemption of shares

0 0 0 0
ii. Shares forfeited 0 0 0 0
iii. Reduction of share capital

0 0 0 0
iv. Others, specify
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0

ISIN of the equity shares of the company
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(ii) Details of stock split/consolidation during the year (for each class of shares) 0

Class of shares (1) (i) (iii)

Number of shares

Before split /

Consolidation Face value per share

Number of shares

After split /

Consolidation Face value per share

(iii) Details of shares/Debentures Transfers since closure date of last financial year (or in the case
of the first return at any time since the incorporation of the company) *

] Nil
[Details being provided in a CD/Digital Media] ® Yes O No (O Not Applicable
Separate sheet attached for details of transfers O VYes O No

Note: In case list of transfer exceeds 10, option for submission as a separate sheet attachment or submission in a CD/Digital
Media may be shown.

Date of the previous annual general meeting 25/09/2023

Date of registration of transfer (Date Month Year) [11/09/2023

Type of transfer Equity Shares ||1 - Equity, 2- Preference Shares,3 - Debentures, 4 - Stock
Number of Shares/ Debentures/ 1 Amount per Share/ 10
Units Transferred Debenture/Unit (in Rs.)
Ledger Folio of Transferor 13
Transferor's Name Agrawal Kumar Pradip
Surname middle name first name
Ledger Folio of Transferee 20
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Transferee's Name

Shams

Azhar

Mohammad

Surname

middle name

first name

Date of registration of transfer (Date Month Year)

Type of transfer

1 - Equity, 2- Preference Shares,3 - Debentures, 4 - Stock

Units Transferred

Number of Shares/ Debentures/

Amount per Share/
Debenture/Unit (in Rs.)

Ledger Folio of Transferor

Transferor's Name

Surname middle name first name
Ledger Folio of Transferee
Transferee's Name
Surname middle name first name
(iv) "Debentures (Outstanding as at the end of financial year)
Particulars Number of units Nominal value per Total value
unit
Non-convertible debentures 0 0
Partly convertible debentures 0 0
Fully convertible debentures 0 0
Total
0

Details of debentures
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Class of debentures

Outstanding as at
the beginning of the
year

Increase during the
year

Decrease during the
year

Outstanding as at
the end of the year

Non-convertible debentures

0 0 0 0
Partly convertible debentures

0 0 0 0
Fully convertible debentures

0 0 0 0

(v) Securities (other than shares and debentures)

0

Type of Number of Nominal Value of |Total Nominal Paid up Value of [Total Paid up Value
Securities Securities each Unit Value each Unit
Total

V. *Turnover and net worth of the company (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013)

(i) Turnover

(ii) Net worth of the Company

78,342,095.75

395,522,960.8

VI. (a) *SHARE HOLDING PATTERN - Promoters

S. No. Category Equity Preference
Number of shares Percentage Number of shares Percentage
1. Individual/Hindu Undivided Family
(i) Indian 0 0 0
ii) Non-resident Indian (NRI
(i (NRI) . . ;
(iii) Foreign national (other than NRI) 0 0 0
5 Government
(i) Central Government
0 0 0
(ii) State Government
0 0 0
(iii) Government companies
228,682,048 100 0
Insurance companies
3. 0 0 0
Banks
4. 0 0 0
Financial institutions
5. 0 0 0
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Foreign institutional investors

6 0 0 0

Mutual funds
7 0 0 0

Venture capital
8 0 0 0

Body corporate
9. (not mentioned above) 0 0 0
10. Others 0 0 0

Total
228,682,048 100 0 0

Total number of shareholders (promoters) 7

(b) *SHARE HOLDING PATTERN - Public/Other than promoters

S. No. Category Equity Preference
Number of shares Percentage Number of shares Percentage
1. Individual/Hindu Undivided Family
(i) Indian 0 0 0
ii) Non-resident Indian (NRI
(i) (NR) 0 0 ;
(iii) Foreign national (other than NRI)
0 0 0
5 Government
(i) Central Government
0 0 0
ii) State G t
(i) State Governmen 0 0 0
(iii) Government companies
0 0 0
Insurance companies
3 0 0 0
Banks
4 0 0 0
Financial institutions
5 0 0 0
Foreign institutional investors
6 0 0 0
Mutual funds
7 0 0 0
Venture capital
8 0 0 0
Body corporate
9. (not mentioned above) 0 0 0
10. Others 0 0 0
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Total
0 0 0 0
Total number of shareholders (other than promoters) 0
Total number of shareholders (Promoters+Public/
Other than promoters) 7

VII. *“NUMBER OF PROMOTERS, MEMBERS, DEBENTURE HOLDERS
(Details, Promoters, Members (other than promoters), Debenture holders)

Promoters 7 7
Members

(other than promoters) 0 0
Debenture hold

ebenture holders 0 0

VIII. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(A) *Composition of Board of Directors

Category Number of directors at the Number of directors at the end | Percentage of shares held by
beginning of the year of the year directors as at the end of year
Executive Non-executive Executive Non-executive Executive Non-executive
A. Promoter
0 4 0 4 0 0
B. Non-Promoter
0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Non-Independent
0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Independent
W P 0 0 0 0 0 0
C. Nominee Directors
representing 0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Banks & FIs
0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Investing institutions
0 0 0 0 0 0
(ii1) Government
0 0 0 0 0 0
(iv) Small share holders
0 0 0 0 0 0
(v) Others
0 0 0 0 0 0
Total
0 4 0 4 0 0

Number of Directors and Key managerial personnel (who is not director) as on the financial year end date |7
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(B) (i) *Details of directors and Key managerial personnel as on the closure of financial year

Name DIN/PAN Designation Number of equity Date of cessation
share(s) held (after closure of financial
year : If any)
SANJAY SWARUP 05159435 Director 0
MOHHAMMAD AZHAF 07627473 Director 1
SHARAD VERMA 07054970 Director 0
RITU NARANG 10044126 Director 0
ALOK BADKUL ABVPB8025A CEO 0
RAVINDRA RAGHUR/| ACPPB3002N CFO 0
SUMAN LATA KHANN| AQTPK1504G |Company Secretar 0
(ii) Particulars of change in director(s) and Key managerial personnel during the year 3

Name DIN/PAN Designation at the . . [Nature of change

o . Date of appointment/ change in . .

beginning / during the . . . (Appointment/ Change in
. . designation/ cessation . . .

financial year designation/ Cessation)

VENNELAKANTI KA 07201556 Director 01/10/2023 CESSATION
SANJAY SWARUP 05159435 Director 01/10/2023 APPOINTMENT
SHARAD VERMA 07054970 Director 19/10/2023 APPOINTMENT

IX. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS/CLASS OF MEMBERS/BOARD/COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

A. MEMBERS/CLASS /REQUISITIONED/NCLT/COURT CONVENED MEETINGS

Number of meetings held

—_

Type of meeting

Date of meeting

Total Number of
Members entitled to
attend meeting

Attendance

Number of members

% of total

attended shareholding
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETI 25/09/2023 7 7 100
B. BOARD MEETINGS
*Number of meetings held (4
Attendance

S. No. Date of meeting

Total Number of directors
associated as on the date
of meeting

Number of directors
attended

% of attendance
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Total Number of directors Attendance
S. No. Date of meeting associated as on the date
of meeting Number of directors
attended % of attendance
1 16/05/2023 3 75
2 08/08/2023 4 100
3 31/10/2023 4 100
4 22/01/2024 4 100

C. COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Number of meetings held

Attendance
S N Type of Total Number
. No. .
meeting Date of meeting of Members as
on the date of |Number of members
the meeting attended % of attendance
1 AUDIT COM 16/05/2023 3 2 66.67
2 AUDIT COM 08/08/2023 3 3 100
3 AUDIT COM 31/10/2023 3 3 100
4 AUDIT COM 22/01/2024 3 3 100
5 REMUNERA 31/10/2023 3 3 100
D. *ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS
Board Meetings Committee Meetings Whether
attended AGM
S. Name Number of Number of held on
No. of the director |Meetings which|Number of % of Meetings which |Number of % of
director was Meetings aitendance director was Meetings aitendance
entitled to attended entitled to attended
attend attend
(Y/N/NA)
1 SANJAY SWA 4 3 75 2 1 50
2 MOHHAMMAI 4 4 100 4 4 100
3 SHARAD VEF 2 2 100 2 2 100
4 RITU NARAN! 4 4 100 4 4 100

X. “REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
[] Ni

Number of Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager whose remuneration details to be entered
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S. No. Name Designation Gross Salary Commission Stock Option/ Others Total
Sweat equity Amount
1 0
Total
Number of CEO, CFO and Company secretary whose remuneration details to be entered 3
S. No. Name Designation Gross Salary Commission Stock Option/ Others Total
Sweat equity Amount
1 ALOK BADKUL CEO 9,425,215 0 0 0 9,425,215
2 RAVINDRA BHAT CFO 5,940,805 0 0 0 5,940,805
3 SUMAN LATA KHA|COMPANY SEC| 3,979,548 0 0 0 3,979,548
Total 19,345,568 0 0 0 19,345,568
Number of other directors whose remuneration details to be entered
S. No. Name Designation Gross Salary Commission Stock Option/ Others Total
Sweat equity Amount
1 0
Total
XI. MATTERS RELATED TO CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES
* A. Whether the company has made compliances and disclosures in respect of applicable@ Yes O No

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year

B. If No, give reasons/observations

XIl. PENALTY AND PUNISHMENT - DETAILS THEREOF

(A) DETAILS OF PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT IMPOSED ON COMPANY/DIRECTORS /OFFICERS X Nil

Name of the
company/ directors/
officers

Name of the court/
concerned
Authority

Date of Order

Name of the Act and
section under which
penalised / punished

Details of penalty/
punishment

Details of appeal (if any)
including present status

(B) DETAILS OF COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES Nil
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Name of the court/

Name of the concerned Date of Order Name of the Act and . . .
: . . . Particulars of Amount of compounding (in
company/ directors/ [Authority section under which
! . offence Rupees)
officers offence committed

XIIl. Whether complete list of shareholders, debenture holders has been enclosed as an attachment

® Yes O No

XIV. COMPLIANCE OF SUB-SECTION (2) OF SECTION 92, IN CASE OF LISTED COMPANIES

In case of a listed company or a company having paid up share capital of Ten Crore rupees or more or turnover of Fifty Crore rupees or
more, details of company secretary in whole time practice certifying the annual return in Form MGT-8.

Name DEEPAK KUMAR
Whether associate or fellow O Associate @ Fellow
Certificate of practice number 11372
I/We certify that:

(a) The return states the facts, as they stood on the date of the closure of the financial year aforesaid correctly and adequately.

(b) Unless otherwise expressly stated to the contrary elsewhere in this Return, the Company has complied with all the provisions of the
Act during the financial year.

Declaration

I am Authorised by the Board of Directors of the company vide resolution no. ..  |g dated 16/05/2023

(DD/MM/YYYY) to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been compiled with. | further declare that:

1. Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to
the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the company.

2. All the required attachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form.

Note: Attention is also drawn to the provisions of Section 447, section 448 and 449 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provide for
punishment for fraud, punishment for false statement and punishment for false evidence respectively.

To be digitally signed by

Director

DIN of the director 10044126

To be digitally signed by
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(® Company Secretary

O Company secretary in practice

Membership number 13582 Certificate of practice number

Attachments

List of attachments

1. List of share holders, debenture holders

Attach

2. Approval letter for extension of AGM;

Attach

3. Copy of MGT-8;

Attach

4. Optional Attachement(s), if any

Attach

Remove attachment

Modify Check Form

Prescrutiny

Submit

This eForm has been taken on file maintained by the Registrar of Companies through electronic mode and on

the basis of statement of correctness given by the company
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LA -
@%, Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. -
(R HEaR e fafes 99 gofenfae areh wegs w9 e
WA AIBIX BT IUHH, I AATAT B i) e
LA R (A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Container Corporation of India Ltd.
FH.E.L A Govt. of India Undertaking under Ministry of Railways) CONCOR

FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LTD. (FHEL)

List of Directors & Key Managerial Person (KMP) as on 31.03.2024

I. Directors
1. Sh. Sanjay Swarup, Charman
2. Sh. Mohd. Azhar Shams, Director
3. Sh. Sharad Verma, Director

4. Smt. Ritu Narang, Director

II. Key Managerial Person (KMP)*

1. Sh. Alok Badkul, CEO
2. Sh. Ravindra Bhat, CFO
3. Ms Suman Lata, Company Secretary

*Remuneration is paid by holding company i.e. Container Corporation of
India Ltd.

for Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd.

(Suman Lata)
Company Secretary

PRI | THUFRTA WY R TAUHAEeTEeR) seRyua see, WE W — 131029 (&Rarom) eiivhaw : (0130) 2366987 SATATE : 2366988 /89

Works : FHEL CA Store HSIIDC Industrial Estate Rai Sonepat- 131029 (Haryana) Telefax : (0130) 2366987 EPABX : 2366988/89 www.thel.co.in BB TR UM B

Uoid Brferd: SR 7o, W-3, Ay Vs, Aol IRTAT B A, ¢ Reeh — 110 076, TOIT : 41673093, 94, 95 & 96 B : 41673112
Regd. Off.: CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathura Road, Opp. Apolio Hospital, New Delhi - 110 076. Tel.: 41673093, 94, 95 & 96 Fax : 41673112

CIN:U51309DL2006G0I145734



@ w1 vs oeft vexuTEore ffes —
7 Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. e
(r==ia wear Frm fafes o gofvanfia o wsras a9 b
HIRA AIHIR BT IUHH, I AJATST B Iiaiia ) . -
AT ARG (A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Container Corporation of India Ltd.
FH.E.L. A Govt. of India Undertaking under Ministry of Railways) CONCOR
List of Shareholders as on 31/03/2024
L.F. | Name Type of | No. of Amt. Per Address
No. Shares Shares Share
(in Rs.)
01 Container Corporation | Equity 22,86,82,042 10/- CONCOR Bhawan, C-3,
of India Ltd. (A PSU Mathura Road,
under Ministry of New Delhi — 110076.
Railways) through
CMD CONCOR
14 Director (IM & O)/ Equity 1 10/- Do
CONCOR
(CONCOR Nominee)
20 Shri Mohd. Azhar Equity 1 10/- Do
Shams, Director
(Domestic) /CONCOR
(CONCOR Nominee)
19 Shri Sanjay Bajpai, Equity 1 10/- Do
ED/BD/CONCOR

(CONCOR Nominee)

18 Shri Alok Badkul, Equity 1 10/- Do
ED/Area-IV/CONCOR
(CONCOR Nominee)

07 Shri Harish Chandra, | Equity 1 10/- Do
ED (Fin) &
CS/CONCOR,
(CONCOR Nominee)

17 Shri Santosh Sinha Equity 1 10/- Do
ED(P & S)/CONCOR
(CONCOR Nominee)

for Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd.

(Suman Lata)
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13582

PRI | THUFRTA WY R TAUHAEeTEeR) seRyua see, WE W — 131029 (&R Sefiaw : (0130) 2366987 SMTATE : 2366988 /89
Works : FHEL CA Store HSIIDC Industrial Estate Rai Sonepat- 131029 (Haryana) Telefax : (0130) 2366987 EPABX : 2366988/89 www.thel.co.in BB TR UM B
Uoid Brferd: SR 7o, W-3, Ay Vs, Aol IRTAT B A, ¢ Reeh — 110 076, TOIT : 41673093, 94, 95 & 96 B : 41673112
Regd. Off.: CONCOR Bhawan, C-3, Mathura Road, Opp. Apolio Hospital, New Delhi - 110 076. Tel.: 41673093, 94, 95 & 96 Fax : 41673112
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DRAFT
Form No. MGT-8

[Pursuant to section 92(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 11
(2) of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CERTIFICATE BY A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

We have examined the registers, records and books and papers of FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (the Company) as required to be
maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder for the financial year ended on 31st March 2024. In our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the examinations carried
out by us and explanations furnished to us by the company, its officers and
agents, we certify that:

A. The Annual Return states the facts as at the close of the aforesaid financial
year correctly and adequately.

B. During the aforesaid financial year the Company has complied with
provisions of the Act & Rules made there under in respect of:

1. Its status under the Act.

2. Maintenance of registers/records & making entries therein within the time
prescribed therefore.

3. Filing of forms and returns as stated in the annual return, with the
Registrar of Companies, within the prescribed time or late with payment of
Additional Fees.

4. Calling/ convening/ holding meetings of Board of Directors or its
committees, and the meetings of the members of the company on due dates
as stated in the annual return in respect of which meetings, proper notices
were given and the proceedings including the circular resolutions and
resolution passed by postal ballot, if any, have been properly recorded in the
Minutes Book/registers maintained for the purpose and the same have been
signed.

5. Closure of Register of Members — the Company was not required to close the
Register of Members.
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. Advances/loans to its directors and/or persons or firms or companies

referred in section 185 of the Act — the Company has not made any
advance/loan to its directors and/or persons or firms or companies during
the year under scrutiny.

. contracts/arrangements with related parties as specified in section 188 of

the Act;

. issue or allotment or transfer or transmission or buy back of securities/

redemption of preference shares or debentures / alteration or reduction of
share capital/ conversion of shares/ securities and issue of security
certificates in all instances.

. There were no transaction necessitating the company to keep in abeyance

the right to dividend, right shares, and bonus shares pending registration of
Transfer of Shares.

.declaration/payment of dividend; transfer of unpaid/ unclaimed

dividend /other amounts as applicable to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund in accordance with section 125 of the Act - there was no
amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund.

Signing of audited financial statement as per the provisions of section 134
of the Act and report of directors is as per subsection (3), (4) and (5) thereof.

Constitution/ appointment/ re-appointments/ retirement/ filling up casual
vacancies/ disclosures of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and the
remuneration paid to them. Shri V Kalyana Rama ceased to be chairman
w.e.f. 01/10/2023 upon his superannuation and Shri Sanjay Swarup was
appointed as chairman w.e.f. 01/10/2023, Shri Sharad Verma was
appointed as director w.e.f. 19.10.2023 .

. Appointment/ reappointment/ filling up casual vacancies of auditors as per

the provisions of section 139 of the Act. Being the Government Company
auditors is appointed by Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG).
There was no casual vacancy of auditors.
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14. Approvals required to be taken from the Central Government, Tribunal,
Regional Director, Registrar, Court or such other authorities under the
various provisions of the Act - no approval was required to be taken from
these authorities during the year under scrutiny.

15. Acceptance/ renewal/ repayment of deposits - no deposit has been taken
by the company.

16. Borrowings from its directors, members, public financial institutions, banks
and others and creation/ modification/ satisfaction of charges in that
respect, wherever applicable. The Company has not made any borrowings
from its directors, members, public financial institutions, banks and other
during the financial year under review.

17. Loans and investments or guarantees given or providing of securities to
other bodies corporate or persons falling under the provisions of section
186 of the Act. There was no loan or investment or guarantee given or
securities provided to other bodies corporate or persons by the Company.

18. Alteration of the provisions of the Memorandum and / or Articles of
Association of the Company — There was no alteration of the provisions of
Memorandum or Articles of Association of the Company.

For Akhil Rohatgi & Co.
Company Secretaries
Reg. No. P1995DE072900

CS Deepak Kumar
Partner
M No.: F10189
CP No.: 11372
UDIN:

Date:
Place: Delhi
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